
Agenda    Board of Supervisors  April 8, 2024 

Russell County Page 1 

RUSSELL COUNTY 
BOARD OF SUPERVISOR’S MEETING 

AGENDA – APRIL 8, 2024 

BOS Board Room  Regular Meeting        6:00 PM 

Russell County Governmental Center 
Lebanon, Virginia 24266 

Russell County Board of Supervisors’ “Public Board Packet” can be viewed or downloaded at 
https://russellcountyva.us/agendacenter.   

A hard copy of the Public Board Packet is located at the County Administrator’s Office or the County’s website electronically 
five (5) days prior to the board meeting or when the Chairman of the Board releases.  In addition, one hard copy of the Public 

Board Packet will be available for public review at the board meeting. 

CALL TO ORDER & ROLL CALL – Clerk of the Board 

INVOCATION   

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

PUBLIC HEARING 

1. RC Park Ordinance

PRESENTATION……………………………………………………………………………….…A-1 

1. Dr. Hooker – RC School Board – FY 2023/2024 School Board Budget

2. Acacia Nunley - Isaiah 117 House Russell County VA

3. Matt Boyd – CPPD – PSA Tiller Trailor Park Water Project

4. American Red Cross – Sharon Dixon

DRAFT 

https://russellcountyva.us/agendacenter


Agenda                        Board of Supervisors        April 8, 2024 
 

Russell County Page 2 
 

 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

1. Approval of Minutes.  Consider approval of the minutes of the following                       
meeting of the Russell County Board of Supervisors……………………………B-1 

 
a. Unapproved minutes of March 2, 2024 
b. Unapproved minutes of March 8, 2024        

  
2. Approval of Expenditures. Consider approval of expenditures presented  

for payment……………………………………………………………………………...B-2 
 

3. Committee Appointments for Board Consideration………………………………B-3 
 
    **** Committee and Board Appointments Applications are currently being accepted. *****  
 
CITIZEN’S COMMENT PERIOD (Limited to 3 Minutes) 
 
CONSTITUTIONAL OFFICER REPORTS AND REQUESTS 
 
COUNTY ATTORNEY REPORTS AND REQUESTS 
 
COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR REPORTS AND REQUESTS 
 

REPORTS 
 

1. Russell County By-Laws Update……………………………………………………...C-1 
 

2. Russell County Road Reporting System…………………………………………….C-2 
 

3. VDOT Monthly Road System Report………..………………………………………..C-3 
 

REQUESTS 
  

4. RC CY 2024 Tax Rate and Public Hearing Notice……………………………….…C-4 
 

5. Pure Salmon Project – VDOT Resolution……………………………………………C-5 
 

6. CPRWMA Solid Waste User Agreement……………………………………………..C-6 
 

7. RC Park Ordinance Update…………………………………………………………….C-7 
 

8. 2024 March Primary Election Results………………………………………………..C-8 
 

9. RC Electoral Board ICE Scanner Tabulator………………………………………...C-9 
 

10. Honaker Little League Fence Repairs………………..……………..……………….C-10 

DRAFT 



Agenda                        Board of Supervisors        April 8, 2024 
 

Russell County Page 3 
 

 
11. RC Kids Fishing Day Donation………………………………………………………..C-11 

 
12. RC Planning Commission Plats………………………………………………………C-12 

 
 BOARD DISCUSSIONS & REMINDERS 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
COUNTY AGENCY / BOARD REPORTS: 
        

• Treasurer…………….……………………………………………………………………D 
• RC IDA …………………………………………………………………………………….E 
• RC PSA …………………………………………………………………………………... F 
• RC Tourism……………………………………………………………………………….G 
• RC Planning Commission ……………………………………………………………..H 
• RC Conference Center…………………………………………………………………..I 
• RC Transportation & Safety…………………………………………………………...J 
• RC Canneries……….…………………………………………………………………….K 
• RC Building Inspector…………………………………………………………………..L 
• RC Disposal………..……………………………………………………………………..M  
• RC Litter………..………………………………………………………………………….N 

DRAFT 



 
  

Russell County Virginia 
“The Heart of Southwest Virginia” 

 
Andrew Hensley  Rebecca Dye 
District 1   District 6  
 
Lou Ann Wallace                  Steve Breeding, Chairman Nathan Kiser 
District 2               District 5 At-Large  
   
Tara Dye                 David Eaton, Vice-Chairman Lonzo Lester 
District 3              District 4 County Administrator 
 

Russell County Government Center 
137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 

www.russellcountyva.us 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

PUBLIC NOTICE 
 

APRIL 2024 REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
 

RUSSELL COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 
TAKE NOTICE pursuant to Section 2.2-3707 of the Code of Virginia, the Russell County Board of  
 
Supervisors Regular Monthly Board Meeting will be held on April 8, 2024, at 6 P.M. at the Russell County  
 
Board Room, located at 137 Highland Drive, Lebanon, Virginia.  
 
Notice Given Pursuant to Section 2.2-3707 of the Code of Virginia on the 16th day of March 2024.  
 
 
 
 

BY ORDER OF THE  
RUSSELL COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS  

 

DRAFT 



 
  

Russell County Virginia 
“The Heart of Southwest Virginia” 

 
Andrew Hensley  Rebecca Dye 
District 1   District 6  
 
Lou Ann Wallace                  Steve Breeding, Chairman Nathan Kiser 
District 2               District 5 At-Large  
   
Tara Dye                 David Eaton, Vice-Chairman Lonzo Lester 
District 3              District 4 County Administrator 
 

Russell County Government Center 
137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 

www.russellcountyva.us 

  

  

  

 

 

 
 

 

PUBLIC NOTICE 

Public Hearing 
 

The Russell County Board of Supervisors’ will hold a Public Hearing on 
Monday, April 8, 2024, at 6:00 P.M. to hear public comments concerning updating 
of the “Russell County Park Ordinance.”   

A copy of the proposed Russell County Park Ordinance is available for review 
in the Office of the County Administrator at 137 Highland Drive, Lebanon, Virginia 
during normal business hours.   

In addition, the ordinance is posted as part of the Board of Supervisor’s Public 
Board Packet on the County’s Website at https://russellcountyva.us/agendacenter 
and on RussellCountyVA App. 

The Public Hearings will be held in the Russell County Board of Supervisor’s 
Board Room at the Russell County Governmental Center, 133 Highland Drive, 
Lebanon, Virginia 24266 during the regular April 2024 monthly meeting. 

 

 

 
BY ORDER OF THE 
RUSSELL COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

 

 

DRAFT 



 

 1 

RUSSELL COUNTY PARKS  
ORDINANCE 

 
At a regular meeting of the Russell County Board of Supervisors held in the Russell 

County Government Center, Lebanon, Virginia, on the 8th day of April 2024. 
 

Present           

 Vote 

Steve Breeding, Chairman  
David Eaton, Vice Chairman 
Andrew Hensley 
Lou Ann Wallace 
Tara Dye 
Rebecca Dye 
Nate Kiser 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 

 On motion of _____________, seconded by _______________, which carried ______, 
the following ordinance was adopted: 

 
1.  Definitions.  The following terms, unless otherwise expressly defined, shall have the meaning given 
herein. 

 
(a) “Camping Unit,” shall mean a tent, sleeping bag, tent trailer, travel trailer, camping trailer, pick-up 

camper, RV motor home, whether motor driven or designed to be attached to or drawn by a vehicle. 
(b) “Campground,” refers to all designated campgrounds under the jurisdiction of the Russell County 

Board of Supervisors. 
(c) “County,” refers to the Russell County Board of Supervisors. 
(d) “Facilities,” refers to all community centers under the jurisdiction of the Commission or the Russell 

County Board of Supervisors. 
(e) “Motor Vehicle,” means any wheeled conveyance, whether motor powered.  The term shall include 

any trailer in two of any size, kind, or description. 
(f) “Owner,” means any person, firm, association, partnership, or corporation owning, leasing,  

operating, or having the exclusive use of a vehicle, animal, or any other property under a lease or 
otherwise. 

(g) “Park,” shall include all designated public parks, including athletic fields, natural areas and  
historical sites under the jurisdiction of the Russell County Board of Supervisors. 

(h) “Permits,” means any written license issued by or under authority of the Board of Supervisors 
permitting the performance of a specified act or acts. 

(i) “Person,” means any natural person, corporation, company, association, organization, firm or  
partnership. 

(j) “Regulation,” shall include any regulation duly adopted by the Russell County Board of  
Supervisors pursuant to the powers contained in Virginia Code Section 15.2. 

 
2.  Construction of Ordinance.   Provisions of these regulations shall be construed as follows: 

(a) No provision of this ordinance shall make unlawful any act necessarily performed by any law 
enforcement officer, employee of the County, or agent of the County in the necessary and proper 
execution of their duties; 

DRAFT 



 

 2 

(b) Any act prohibited by these regulations, provided it is not otherwise prohibited by law or local 
ordinance, shall be lawful if performed under, by virtue of and strictly within the provision of a 
permit and to the extent authorized; and  
(c) These regulations are in addition to and supplement the Virginia Game, Inland Fish and Boat 
Laws and those regulations that are incorporated and made a part thereof; 
 

3.  Jurisdiction.  These regulations shall be effective within and upon all parks, campgrounds, and facilities 
in Russell County that are under the jurisdiction of the County. 
 

PROHIBITED CONDUCT 
 
4.  Flowers, Plants, Minerals, etc.  No person shall remove, destroy, or damage in any manner any tree, 
flower, fern, shrub, rock or plant, historical artifact, or mineral in any park.  Nor shall any person attach any 
rope, wire or other contrivance to any tree or plant.  A person shall not dig in or otherwise disturb grassy 
areas or otherwise impair the natural beauty or usefulness of any park. 
 
5.  Buildings, Signs, Structures, etc.  No person shall in any manner deface, destroy or tamper with any part 
of any park or facility, nor any building, sign, equipment, bridges, tables, benches, fireplaces, railings, 
paving or paving material, water lines or other public utilities or parts or appurtenances thereof, signs, 
notices, boundary markers, or other structures or equipment, County facilities or park property or 
appurtenances whatsoever, either real or personal. 
 
6.   Disposal of Refuse, Garbage, etc.   No person shall discharge, deposit in any part of any park or facility 
or body of water in or adjacent to any park any garbage, sewage, waste, or any other offensive material, 
except in proper trash receptacles where provided. 
 
7.  Pollution of Waters.  No person shall bathe dogs or other animals, wash vehicles or clothing in the 
streams, or other waters of any park, or throw, discharge or otherwise cause to be placed into streams, or 
other waters of the park or in any storm sewer or drain flowing into said waters, any substance, matter or 
thing, liquid or solid, which may or shall result in the pollution of said waters. 
 
8.  Disorderly Conduct.  No person shall disobey a lawful order of a park supervisor or other duly authorized 
officer or agent of the County or Commission.  No person may commit a nuisance, nor use abusive, profane, 
or insulting language, nor unreasonably disturb or annoy others, nor do any act tending to or amounting to 
a breach of the peace in any park or facility. 
 
9.  Gambling.   Gambling in any park is prohibited. 
 
10.  Prohibited Substances.  No person shall have in their possession any illegal substances or be under the 
influence of intoxicants while in the confines of any park or facility.  Anyone found in violation will be 
removed from the park or facility and are subject to arrest. 
 
11.  Bathing.   No person shall swim in any waters in any park. 
 
12. Firearms.  No person shall possess a slingshot, bow and arrow, dart device, or other device designated 
for high-speed missile projection in a park or facility.  Provided, no person except law enforcement officers 
or those persons in possession of a concealed weapons permit valid in the Commonwealth of Virginia may 
carry or possess firearms in a park or facility.  No person shall discharge a firearm within the confines of a 
park or facility unless in an act of self-defense or unless otherwise authorized as a law enforcement officer. 
  

DRAFT 



 

 3 

13.  Explosives.  No person shall bring into or possess in any park or facility any explosive or explosive 
substance. 
 
14.  Fires, Lighted Cigarettes, etc.  No person shall kindle, maintain, or use fire other than in places provided 
or designated for such purposes or otherwise by special permit.  Any fire shall be continuously under the 
care and direction of a competent person over sixteen years of age from the time it is kindled until it is 
extinguished. No person within the confine of any park shall throw away or discard any lighted match, 
cigarette, cigar, or other burning object.  Any lighted match, cigarette, cigar, or other burning object must 
be entirely extinguished before being properly disposed of. 
 
15.  Smoking.  No person shall smoke in any park or facility where smoking is prohibited as indicated by 
sign.  No smoking is allowed when walking nature trails.  Smoking may be forbidden by the County or 
Commission in any part of any park or facility when it is deemed that the fire hazard makes such action 
advisable. 
 
16.  Hunting.  No person shall hunt, pursue, trap, shoot, injure, kill, or molest in any way any bird or 
animal within the confines of a park, nor shall any person possess any wild bird or animal within a park.   
Shooting into a park from beyond park boundaries is prohibited. 
 
17.  Fishing.  Fishing is permitted in designated areas of parks.  All persons fishing must have a State 
Fishing License as required by law and comply with all applicable state laws and regulations.  No 
commercial fishing is allowed. 
 
18.  Animals at Large.  No person shall cause or permit any animal owned by him, in his custody or under 
his control, except an animal restrained by a leash not exceeding six feet in length, to enter any park or 
campground, and any such animal may be seized and disposed of as provided by law. 
 
19.  Model Rockets and Airplanes.  No person shall engage in the flying of powered model rockets or 
airplanes in any park. 
 
20.  Aviation.  No person shall voluntarily bring, land or cause to descend or alight within or upon any 
park, any airplane, flying machine, balloon, parachute, or other apparatus for aviation except under permit 
or by forced landing in the event of an emergency.     
 

TRAFFIC AND PARKING 
 

21.  Vehicles Use.  No person shall drive a motor vehicle in any park or at any facility within or upon a 
safety zone, walk, bicycle path, nature trail, fire truck trail, service road or any park not designated for, or 
customarily used by motor vehicles, except properly authorized individuals engaged in fire control, park 
maintenance or other necessary park-related activities. 
 
22.  Parking.   

(a)  No owner or driver shall cause or permit a vehicle to stand anywhere in any park or at any 
facility outside of designated parking spaces, except at reasonable times to receive or discharge 
passengers.  Parking shall be in accordance with the posted directions to the parking area and/or 
with the instruction of any attendant who may be present. 
(b)  No owner or driver shall cause or permit a vehicle to stand in any space designated for use by 
the handicapped in any park or at any facility unless the vehicle displays a license plate or decal 
issued by The Commissioner of Motor Vehicles of Virginia, or a similar identification issued by 
similar authority in some other state or District of Columbia. 

 

DRAFT 



 

 4 

23.  Obstructing Traffic.  No person shall cause or permit a vehicle to obstruct traffic in a park. 
 
24.  Speed Limit.  The speed limit on any park road is no more than fifteen miles per hour. 
 
25.  Excessive Loads.  No person shall operate any excessively loaded vehicle anywhere in any park.  The 
determination of whether a load is excessive will be made by a park official based upon the load and the 
condition of the road. 
 

HOURS OF ACCESS 
 

26.  Old Russell County Courthouse.  No person is permitted on the premises of the Old Russell County 
Courthouse from sunset until dawn of the following day unless by special permit issued by the County. 
 
27.  Parks.  Normal operating hours of parks are from dawn until 10:00 pm excluding the county’s 
campgrounds.  All events should be concluded by this time unless arrangements are made in advance with 
the Commission.  No person is permitted in the confines of any park or facility after normal operating hours 
unless as otherwise authorized by the County. 
 
28.  Closed Areas. No person shall enter or use an area posted in a park or facility as “Closed to the 
Public” unless otherwise authorized by the County. 
 

GROUP USAGE 
 
29.  Provisions for Use of Any Park or Facility by Groups of Five or More.  The following provisions apply 
to use of any County Park or facility by groups of five or more: 

 
(a)   Any individual or organization sponsoring an event must provide sufficient adult supervision 
to maintain order and safety of all participants, be responsible for any loss or damage to the property 
and provide sufficient liability insurance coverage as required by the Commonwealth of Virginia.  
The Commission shall be a named insured on such liability insurance coverage. 
 
(b)  An individual must be designated as a user group’s representative and will accept all liability 
for personal injuries or damage resulting from the use of the facility or park. 
 

30.  Provisions Applying Exclusively to Use of Parks by Groups of Five or More.   The following provisions 
apply to the use of any County Park by groups of five or more: 

 
(a) A Facility Use Application must be submitted for approval to the County. 
 
(b) A damage deposit of $50 must be provided to the County prior to the event; said deposit to be 
returned or released by the County within ten days of the event, offset by the cost of any cleaning 
or damages caused by the respective group’s use of the park. 
 
(c) No cleaning or damage deposit shall be required for use of a park by any community welfare, 
charitable, educational, or faith-based group or any group with an agreement with the County for 
such group to provide maintenance and upkeep of such park.   

 
31.  Facilities Other than Parks.  No fee or damage deposit shall be required for use of any facility other 
than parks. 
 
 

DRAFT 



 

 5 

ENFORCEMENT AND PENALTIES 
 

32.  Enforcement.  The County shall, in connection with their duties imposed by law, diligently enforce 
the provisions of this Ordinance.  The County shall have the authority to eject from a park or facility any 
person acting in violation of this Ordinance. 
 
33. Penalties.  It shall be unlawful and constitute a misdemeanor for any person to violate any of the 
provisions of the Russell County Park Rules, as promulgated under the authority of Virginia Code Section 
15.2.  Each day any person who continues to act in violation of any of the rules shall constitute a separate 
offense.  Every person convicted of a misdemeanor for violation of any of the rules shall be punished by a 
fine of not less than fifty dollars nor more than five hundred dollars and the trial of all violations of this 
ordinance shall be enforced by proceedings before the Judge of the Russell County District Court, in the 
manner and with like rights of appeal as is provided in misdemeanor cases; and the Sheriff and all 
deputies, Virginia Game Warden, and all police officers of Russell county are hereby authorized to issue 
summons in writing to the violators of this ordinance to appear before said Court.  All fines collected 
from any person for violating any portion of this ordinance, upon conviction thereof, shall be credited to 
the general revenue funds of the County of Russell and deposited by the Treasurer or Russell County in 
the same manner as provided for other monies. 
 
34.  Savings Provision.  If any section, phrase, or part of this ordinance should for any reason be held 
invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the remainder of this ordinance; 
and every remaining section, phrase or part thereof shall continue in full force and effect. 
 
This ordinance shall become effective _____________________, 2024. 

  Adopted this _____ day of ______________, 2024. 

      ______________________________________ 
      STEVE BREEDING, CHAIRMAN 
      Russell County Board of Supervisors 
 
Attest: ______________________ 
           Clerk DRAFT 



Russell County Government Center 
137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 

www.russellcountyva.us 

Board of Supervisors  Information Item  
137 Highland Drive     Presenters - Various 
Lebanon, VA 24266 

 Meeting: 4/8/24      6:00 PM 

Presentations
1. Dr. Hooker – RC School Board – FY 2023/2024 School Board Budget

2. Acacia Nunley - Isaiah 117 House Russell County VA

3. Matt Boyd – CPPD - Tiller Trailor Park Water Project

4. American Red Cross – Sharon Dixon

Staff Recommendation: 

Presentation – Informational Only. 

Suggested Motion: 

Board Discretion.  

ATTACHMENTS: 
• Various

DRAFT 



  

 

  
 

 

1 

ADMINISTRATIVE AGREEMENT 

Tiller Trailer Park Waterline Extension Project Project 

 

 This Agreement entered into this ____ of ________, 2024 by and between the Cumberland 

Plateau Planning District Commission, hereinafter referred to as the "PDC," and Russell County 

Board of Supervisors, hereinafter referred to as the "Grantee." 

 WITNESSETH 
 WHEREAS, the PDC is authorized by Chapter 42 of Title 15.2 Code of Virginia (1950), as 

amended, to assist local governmental units in planning their development; and 

WHEREAS, the Grantee has agreed that Waterline Extension Project will improve the lives of the 
residents by providing clean and safe potable water. 
 

 NOW THEREFORE, the PDC and Grantee hereto do mutually agree as follows:  
 

I. Scope of Work Required of PDC 

 The PDC agrees to provide technical assistance to the Grantee related to the 

administration of the Community Development Block Grant, hereinafter referred to as "CDBG," 

offered by the Virginia Department of Housing and Community Development, hereinafter referred 

to as "DHCD," and to do so in accordance with all terms and conditions set forth in this agreement 

to the satisfaction of DHCD. 

  The PDC will carry out its scope of work by working in conjunction with the Grantee in 

compliance with the assurances set forth in the application and in compliance with the conditions 

set forth in the Grant Agreement executed between the Grantee and DHCD. 

 

II. Time of PDC Performance 
 The PDC agrees to complete performance activities called for herein by the date of final 

closeout of the project. 

 

III. Duties and Responsibilities of the PDC 
  The PDC agrees to do the following administrative technical assistance activities: 

 

1. General Coordination – The PDC will provide assistance to the Grantee in 

completing the pre-contact activities as discussed during contract negotiations as soon 

DRAFT 



  

 

  
 

 

2 

as possible.  The PDC will provide coordination and administration of the project by 

working as a liaison between the Grantee, engineer, contractor, DHCD and all other 

funding agencies.  The PDC will assist the Grantee in the preparation of 

correspondence relating to the implementation of the project. 

2. Financial Record Keeping - The PDC will assist the Grantee in maintaining 

accurate records of the financial expenditures of the CDBG monies in this project.   All 

requests for payment will require authorization for payment by the Grantee. The PDC 

will prepare all draw downs for the Grantee’s submission to DHCD. Following 

submission, the PDC will distribute full drawdown packets back to the Grantee and the 

Dickenson County Board of Supervisors and keep financial files in order with support 

invoices, EDI statements, bank statements and check copies for future compliance 

reviews.  The PDC will prepare monitoring spreadsheets for compliance showing 

allocation of funds to approved budget line items.  The PDC will track all expenditures 

of leverage funds in regard to the project.  The PDC will assist the Grantee in preparing 

and requesting budget revisions.  The PDC will assist the Grantee in determining 

eligible budget expenses for the project activities and assist the Grantee with budget 

monitoring. 

3. Project Management Plan - The PDC will assist the Grantee with the preparation 

of the Project Management Plan and any revisions and updates of the Plan.  The PDC 

will conduct monthly Management Team Meetings to meet all tasks according to 

identified timelines.  Revised Project Management Plans and minutes will be forwarded 

monthly to parties involved.  Monthly and annual updates of project progress to will be 

sent to DHCD. 

4. General Record Keeping - The PDC will be responsible for setting up the files 

associated with the CDBG related activities of the project in accordance with the 

guidelines set forth in the Community Improvement Grant Manual.  All items required 

will be kept in appropriate files for future compliance reviews by DHCD. Specifically, the 

PDC will provide initial response to all CDBG related correspondence and identify 

proper location of all correspondence in the project files. 

5. Reporting - The PDC will prepare all reports required by DHCD in conformance to 

the Grantee's implementation of the CDBG contract requirements. These will include, 

but not necessarily be limited to, the annual status reports, the monthly status reports to 

the Community Development Specialist, the various compliance and closeout 

DRAFT 



  

 

  
 

 

3 

documents required including, but not limited to, a final financial report, a final 

construction report, and a final evaluation report.  In the event the PDC chooses to use 

subcontractors during the course of its work, all payments to the subcontractors will be 

the exclusive responsibility of the PDC. 

6. Compliance - The PDC will act as the Compliance Officer for the project for labor 

standards, equal employment opportunities, Section 3 compliance, and environmental 

regulations. In terms of labor standards, the PDC will verify the appropriate Davis-

Bacon wage rates by conducting periodic contractor employee interviews and review 

payrolls from all contractors on a weekly basis to coordinate all information between the 

payroll sheets, Monthly Register of Assigned Employees and Employee Interview 

Sheets. The PDC will advise the Grantee of all compliance requirements regarding 

Equal Employment Opportunities and Section 3 requirements. The PDC will verify that 

the engineer has included all necessary compliance statements to be met by the 

contractor as part of the bid documents. The PDC will further verify that the engineer 

has prepared and performed all actions necessary to assure compliance to all 

applicable environmental legislation and regulations, and provide assurance to the 

Grantee that the project has received approval from the regulatory agency stating that 

the project has been designed by the engineer specifically as proposed in the CDBG 

and other funding contracts.  The PDC will attend the pre-construction conference for 

construction related tasks and review the Labor Standards, Equal Opportunity, and 

Section 3 requirements with the contractors.  The PDC will attend the Bid Opening for 

construction for the project and will attend Progress Meetings with the Grantee, 

engineer and contractors. 

7. Procurement - The PDC will advise and assist the Grantee in adhering to state 

and/or federal procurement legislation and regulations.  

8. Final close out – The PDC will prepare and submit all final reports required to 

close out the CDBG grant. 

9. Subcontracting - The PDC reserves the right to subcontract any tasks required in 

meeting the foregoing responsibilities. 

 IV. Duties and Responsibilities of the Grantee 

   The Grantee agrees to perform the following administrative activities: 

  1. Financial Record Keeping - The Grantee will maintain accurate records of the 

financial expenditures of the CDBG monies in this project and all other funding sources for 

DRAFT 



  

 

  
 

 

4 

the project listed as project leverage. 

   2.  General Record Keeping - The Grantee will assist the PDC in maintaining 

accurate project files. All incoming correspondence directly and indirectly relating to the 

project will be opened and read by the Grantee and forwarded to the PDC for review. The 

Grantee will promptly notify the PDC of any correspondence that appears to need 

immediate action. All files, records, documentation and correspondence associated with 

this project shall be housed with the Grantee, with appropriate copies of said documents 

housed with the PDC. 

 V. Method of Payment 
   Grantee agrees to pay the PDC cash consideration not to exceed fifty-thousand 

dollars ($50,000.00), which constitutes full and complete payment for the PDC's work and 

activities as set forth herein. Such sum will be paid in the following manner, in every case subject 

to receipt of the PDC's requisition for payment.  It is understood that the payments to the PDC will 

be made according to the eligible performance thresholds. 

  In the event management work would be required past the time the all-available 

management funds have been expensed, the PDC would complete management of the project 

until the final closeout of the project. 

 

 

 Performance thresholds agreed upon are as follows: 

Threshold            %    Amount      Cum % Cum Amount  

Execution of DHCD Contract  20% 10,000 20% 10,000 

Construction Contract Award 10% 5,000 30% 15,000 

 Monthly Mgmt Team Meetings – Contract 
Monitoring  

10% 5,000 40% 20,000 

Construction Complete - Labor standards 
  
 

20% 10,000 60% 30,000 

Satisfactory Compliance Reviews – 
Approx 2 @ $1,750 each 

10% 5,000 70% 35,000 

Achievement of Benefits 20% 10,000 90% 45,000 

Administrative Closeout 10% 5,000 100% 50,000 
 

DRAFT 



  

 

  
 

 

5 

 
VI.  Amendment 
   This contract may be amended from time to time by written authorization of the 

PDC and the Grantee and shall be subject to re-negotiation if such amendment results in a change 

in the scope of services, compensation and method of payment. However, in no case may the 

contract be amended without the expressed written authorization of the DHCD. 

 

THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DRAFT 



  

 

  
 

 

6 

Witness the following signatures and seals as of the date first above written: 

 
Seal: Cumberland Plateau Planning District Commission 

By: ________________________________ 
       Scotty Wampler, Executive Director 

Commonwealth of Virginia 

County of ___________________, To-Wit: 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _______ day of ___________, 2024 

My commission expires: ___________            ____________________________ 

             Notary Public 

 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Seal: Russell County Board of Supervisors 
By: ________________________________ 

Lonzo Lester, County Administrator 
Commonwealth of Virginia 

County of ___________________, To-Wit: 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _______ day of ___________, 2024 

My commission expires: ___________            ____________________________ 

             Notary Public 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DRAFT 



Interagency Agreement 
 

 This Agreement entered into this _____ day of _________, 2024, by and between 
the Russell County Board of Supervisors, (hereinafter referred to as the County), and the 
Russell County Public Service Authority, (hereinafter referred to as the PSA) 
. 

Witnesseth 
 

 WHEREAS, the County has been approved by the Virginia Department of 
Housing and Community Development (VDHCD) in accordance with grant applications 
submitted by the County to oversee the construction of the Tiller Trailer Park Waterline 
Extension Project (hereinafter referred to as the Waterline Extension Project) in order to 
improve water access and home accessibility within the region; and 
 
 WHEREAS, under the regulations of the VDHCD the County is the only legal 
entity which is permitted to enter into a contract for the receipt of the grant funds in order 
to implement the Grant; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is appropriate and proper for the legal entity, which is the recipient 
of the grant to enter into a contractual agreement with another agency to own and operate 
the systems for which the said funds are being distributed to the County; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the PSA is the official public entity created pursuant to Section 15.1-
1241 et. Seq. of the 1950 Code of Virginia, as amended, which has been delegated the 
responsibility for all matters related to the Waterline Extension Project in Russell County, 
Virginia; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the PSA will accept ownership and operation of said system, and 
 
 WHEREAS, the County has formally agreed to obtain and provide all additional 
funding required in order to complete the Waterline Extension Project being that amount 
of funding by which the total cost of the Waterline Extension Project exceeds the amount 
of the CDBG funding.  
 
 NOW, THERFORE, for good and valuable consideration, including the mutual 
exchange of promises by the between the parties, County and the PSA do hereby 
mutually agree as follows: 
 

1. Dickenson County agrees to accept CDBG grant. 
 

2. The County agrees to enter into the necessary Agreement with DHCD to make 
all to the assurances required in the contract documents which are incorporated as 
part of the Agreement the County must sign in order to implement the CDBG and 
receive the grant funds. 

 

DRAFT 



3. IDA hereby formally agrees that it will own and operate any systems relating to 
this project which the County constructs with CDBG monies. 

 
4. The County agrees to make draw downs in accordance with the VDHCD 

regulations not to exceed the amount of the approved VCDBG grant. 
 

5. No request for a draw down on grant funds will be made by the County unless 
complete and accurate progress and financial reports satisfactory to the County 
indicating the nature of work or activity covered by this request, have been 
submitted by its contractors and engineers and are certified as being true and 
accurate by the official representative of the contractors and engineers. 

 
6. The County agrees to appropriate funds not to exceed the amount of the VCDBG 

monies.  Such appropriations shall only be made after receipt of grant funds by 
The County through the Virginia Department of Housing and Community 
Development. 

 
7. The County, agrees to obtain and provide the necessary matching share funds 

required to complete the Waterline Extension Project being the difference of the 
Waterline Extension Project and the County CDBG grant. 

 
8. The County shall initiate the activities required by the contract documents 

beginning as soon as the VCDBG contract is executed. 
 

9. The County shall complete the work as described in the contract documents in 
compliance with the implementation schedule submitted to VDHCD. 

 
10. The County hereby agrees to carry out all of the terms of the Agreement entered 

into by and between the County and the VDHCD including all of the General 
Conditions, Special Conditions, and Assurances made a part of the contract 
documents listed heretofore which are incorporated by reference in this 
Agreement, as if set out in full. 

 
11. The county hereby agrees to properly administer the VDHCD through the 

VDHCD for the Waterline Extension Project in accordance with all applicable 
federal, state county laws.  The County also agrees to comply with any and all 
regulations and restrictions to the Virginia Department of Housing and 
Community Development in the administration of the VCDBG and in the 
construction phase of the Waterline Extension Project.  It is agreed by and 
between the parties that any and all financial, administrative and other records 
required to be maintained in conjunction with this project by an applicable 
regulation or agreement will be prepared and maintained by the county through 
the CPPDC.  The county shall be responsible for all fiscal accounting 
responsibility in accordance with the disbursement of funds under all of the 
VCDBG, together with the preparation and filing of any and all reports necessary 
for processing and implementation of the VCDBG and for the obtaining of the 

DRAFT 



draw down of funds for the Waterline Extension Project. The County agrees to 
receive and review progress and financial reports before requesting a draw down 
of Block Grant funds, with administrative assistance from the CPPDC. 

 
12. The county agrees to ensure that all construction work performed in connection 

with the Waterline Extension Project complies with all applicable laws as 
outlined in the VDHCD Grant Management Manual and is accomplished in a 
professional and work workmanlike manner.  It is hereby agreed by and between 
the parties that the county will be responsible for ensuring that all work 
performed on the Waterline Extension Project is in compliance with the terms of 
the VDHCD-VCDBG grant and any and all specifications of these funding 
agencies. 

 
13. The parties agree that the county is fully responsible for all purchasing, bidding 

and contracting in connection with the Waterline Extension Project and is 
responsible for complying with all applicable Federal, State and County 
procurement laws and bidding procedures as outlined in the VDHCD Grant 
Management Manual.  Their engineer and or administrative assistant will assist 
the county in these efforts. 

 
14.  The PSA agrees to save and hold harmless the County, the County, and its 

officers, agents, and employees from any and all liability, claim, suits, judgments 
and recoveries of whatsoever nature which may arise in connection with the 
administration of the VCDBG for the Waterline Extension Project and the 
construction work performed on the project. 

 
15. In executing this Agreement, it is the intention of the parties that the PSA shall 

own and operate the systems relating to the project on behalf of the County.  The 
County will be fully responsible for procuring and performance of all the 
engineering, construction, administration and related work on the Waterline 
Extension Project in accordance with the plans, specifications, engineering 
studies of the grant application and all other VCDBG contract documents as 
heretofore specified.  The county shall bear the full responsibility for auditing its 
records of expenditures and disbursement of all funds in connection with the 
Waterline Extension Project. The County is responsible for the audit of its 
financial records relating to the receipt and disbursement of the VCDBG and 
other funds. 

 
16. The parties agree that the County, its agents, officers, and employees shall not be 

liable for the PSA’s default, negligence, neglect, malfeasance, failure to properly 
account for funds, failure to comply with federal, state, or local laws, or any 
failure of the PSA to comply with the terms of the VCDBG, or any provisions of 
the contract documents heretofore enumerated in conjunction with the Waterline 
Extension Project. 

 

DRAFT 



17. Furthermore, upon completion of said construction the County will assume 
ownership and responsibility of system and agrees to operate and maintain the 
facilities of the project which were completed under this grant as a part of its 
regular operations. 

 
18. This Agreement may be amended from time to time only by written authorization 

of both parties, executed with the same formality as this Agreement. 
 

19. This Agreement comports in all respects with the laws of the Commonwealth of 
Virginia. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DRAFT 



IN WHITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have hereunto set their signatures and seal this 
_____ day of _____________________, 2024. 
 
 
 
________________________________ 
Chairman 
Board of Supervisors 
Russell County, Virginia 
 
 
 
 
________________________________ 
Tracy Puckett, Interim Director 
Russell County Public Service Authority 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
STATE OF VIRGINIA 
COUNTY OF Russell 
Personally appeared before me in the County and State aforesaid this _____ day of 
_____________________, 2024, ___________________, and acknowledged this 
foregoing Agreement as this truce act and deed. 
 
________________________________ 
Notary Public 
My Commission expires: _____________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 

DRAFT 



 
 
 
 
     March 4, 2024 
 
 
Ms. Amanda Healy, Program Manager 
Department of Housing and Community Development 
600 East Main Street, Suite 300 
Richmond, Virginia 23219 
 
    Re: Request for Prior Authorization of Costs 
     Tiller Trailer Park Water Line Extension Project  

#23-23-15 
 
Dear Ms. Healy: 
 

Please accept this letter as a formal request for authorization to incur administrative costs 
prior to the execution of our Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) agreement with the 
Virginia Department of Housing and Community Development.  A grant offer has been made to 
us under the Commonwealth of Virginia's FY 2022 ARC program  
 

We anticipate incurring these costs effective March-July 2024 but prior to execution of a 
contract agreement. 
 
 

1. Administration     $5,000 
 

• Performance-based Project Budget  
• Project Management Plan 
• Certification of Signatures 
• Minority and Female Owned Businesses Ad 
• Non Discrimination Policy 
 

2. A/E – Plans and Spec    $82,465 
 
 
 

 
 
 Total Prior Authorized Costs (Not to exceed 15% of total budget): $87,465 
 

 

DRAFT 



We would appreciate your approval to incur these costs and to charge them to the grant after 
the signing of the grant contract agreement.  We understand that these costs will be allowed 
only if we have completed all requirements necessary for contract execution within ninety 
(90) days of our contract negotiation meeting, unless specifically extended by DHCD in 
writing. 
 
 
 Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
 Lonzo Lester, County Administrator 
 
 
 
cc: Kathi Boatright, DHCD Community Development Specialist 
 

DRAFT 



NON-DISCRIMINATION POLICY 

 
 
The Russell County Board of Supervisors or any employee thereof will not discriminate 
in employment, housing or accommodations because of race, color, religion, national 
origin, sex or gender, age, familial status, pregnancy, childbirth or related medical 
conditions (including lactation), marital status, source of income, veteran status, 
disability, sexual orientation or gender identity. Administrative and personnel officials 
will take affirmative action to ensure that this policy shall include, but not be limited, to 
the following:  employment, upgrading, demotion or transfer; rates of pay or other forms 
of compensation; and selection for training. 
 

Duly adopted at the regular meeting of the           _________________           on the ___        
day of ____________, 2024. 

 
 
 
 

_________________________________ 

Signature of Authorized Official 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 DRAFT 



County of Russell, Virginia 
Section 504 Grievance Procedure 

 
The Russell County Board of Supervisors has adopted an internal grievance procedure providing 
for prompt and equitable resolution of complaints alleging any action prohibited by the Department 
of Housing and Urban Development's (HUD) (24 CFR 8.53(b) implementing Section 504 of the 
Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended (29 USC 794).  Section 504 states, in part, that "no 
otherwise qualified handicapped individual . . . shall solely by reason of his handicap, be excluded 
from the participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under any 
program or activity receiving federal financial assistance. . . ." 
 
Complaints should be addressed to: Mr. Lonzo Lester, Russell County Board of Supervisors, 137 
Highland Drive Suite A, Lebanon, VA 24266, (276) 889-8000 who has been designated to 
coordinate Section 504 compliance efforts. 
 
1. A complaint should be filed in writing or verbally contain the name and address of the 

person filing it, and briefly describe the alleged violation of the regulations. 
 
2. A complaint should be filed within 30 days after the complainant becomes aware of the 

alleged violation.  (Processing of allegations of discrimination occurring before this 
grievance procedure was in place will be considered on a case-by-case basis.) 

 
3. An investigation, as may be appropriate, shall follow a filing of a complaint.  The 

investigation will be conducted by Lonzo Lester.  These rules contemplate informal but 
thorough investigations, affording all interested persons and their representatives, if any, 
an opportunity to submit evidence relevant to a complaint.  Under 24 CFR 8.53(b), the 
County need not process complaints from applicants for employment or from applicants 
for admission to housing.  

 
4. A written determination as to the validity of the complaint and description of resolution, if 

any, shall be issued by Larry Barton and a copy forwarded to the complainant no later than 
30 days after its filing. 

 
5. The Section 504 coordinator shall maintain the files and records of County relating to the 

complaints filed. 
 
6. The complainant can request a reconsideration of the case in instances where he or she is 

dissatisfied with the resolution.  The request for reconsideration should be made within 7 
days to the County. 

 
7. The right of a person to a prompt and equitable resolution of the complaint filed hereunder 

shall not be impaired by the person's pursuit of other remedies such as the filing of a Section 
504 complaint with the Department of Housing and Urban Development.  Utilization of 
this grievance procedure is not a prerequisite to the pursuit of other remedies. 

 

DRAFT 



8. These rules shall be construed to protect the substantive rights of interested persons, to 
meet appropriate due process standards and to assure that the County complies with Section 
504 and the HUD regulations. 

 
 
 
      _____________________________                                                                         
      Lonzo Lester, County Administrator 
 
 
       _____________                                                                               
      Date          
 

DRAFT 



 
 
 

FAIR HOUSING 
CERTIFICATION 

 
  Compliance with Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 
 
 
Whereas, the Russell County Board of Supervisors has been offered and intends to 

accept federal funds authorized under the Housing and Community Development Cat of 

1974, as amended, and;  

Whereas, recipients of funding under the Act are required to take action to affirmatively 

further fair housing: 

 

Therefore, the Russell County Board of Supervisors agrees to take at least one action to 

affirmatively further fair housing each grant year, during the life of its project funded 

with Community Development Block Grant funds.  The action taken will be selected 

from a list provided by the Virginia Department of Housing and Community 

Development. 

 

 
    ___________________________ 
             Lonzo Lester, County Administrator 
 
 
    ___________________________ 
      Date 

DRAFT 



This document prepared without benefit of a title 
examination by: 
Russell County Public Service Authority 
137 Highland Dr Suite E 
Lebanon, VA 24266 

                                   Tax Map Parcel Numbers:  
79R3477A, 79R3476   79R3474, and 79R3475 

 

 
Page 1 of 2  

RIGHT-OF WAY EASEMENT 
 
 THIS RIGHT OF WAY EASEMENT made and entered into this ________ day of 
_______________, 2024, by and between MOUNTAIN VIEW COURT INVESTMENTS LLC, 
hereinafter referred to as “Landowner,” and the Russell County Public Service Authority, 
hereinafter referred to as “RCPSA”:  
 

W I T N E S S E T H:  
 
 That for and in consideration of One Dollar ($1.00) cash in hand paid to the Landowner by 
the RCPSA and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt of which is hereby 
acknowledged, the Landowner does hereby grant and convey with General Warranty to the 
RCPSA and its successors and assigns forever the following property and pledge:  
 
 A twenty (20) foot permanent water line easement for the installation, maintenance, 
operation, repair, and replacement of water facilities, including water lines, valves, meters, 
electrical devices and associated appurtenances, which easement is beneath, upon, and over the 
real property. This permanent easement is situated on Tax Parcel Number(s) 79R3477A, 79R3476   
79R3474, and 79R3475, as shown on a sketch of easement titled "Russell County Public Service 
Authority Easement Sketch” attached hereto and part thereof.  
 
 Landowner further understands and agrees as follows:  
 
 1.  All facilities, public works, and appurtenances which are installed in or on said 
property now or in the future by or for RCPSA shall be and remain the property of RCPSA and no 
charge shall at any time be made by the Landowner for the use of the property occupied by RCPSA 
or for the privilege of constructing, maintaining, and operating said facilities and the necessary or 
appropriate appurtenances.   
 
 2.  RCPSA and its agents and employees, for the purpose of inspecting, maintaining, 
or operating its facilities, shall have the right and easement of ingress and egress over any lands of 
the Landowner adjacent to the described easement between any public or private roads and the 
described easement in such manner as shall occasion the least practicable damage and 
inconvenience to Landowner.  
 
 3.  RCPSA shall have the right to inspect, rebuild, repair, change, alter and install such 
additional or substitute lines or facilities within the easement herein granted as RCPSA may from 
time to time deem advisable or expedient, and shall have such rights and privileges as may be 
reasonably necessary for the full enjoyment or use for any of the aforesaid purposes of the 
easement and rights herein granted.   
  
 4.  RCPSA shall repair or replace only ground cover now on the said easement which 
may be disturbed, damaged, or removed as a result of the construction of any of RCPSA’s 
facilities, shall remove all trash and other debris of construction or repair from the easement, and 
shall restore the surface thereof to its original condition.   
 
 5.  Landowner reserves the right to make use of the land subject to the rights herein 
granted, which use shall not be inconsistent with the rights herein conveyed or interfere with the 
use of the said easement by RCPSA for the purposes aforesaid, provided, however, that all such 
use shall be at Landowner’s risk unless prior written approval of RCPSA is obtained and provided 
further that this paragraph shall not apply to property conveyed in fee simple.  
 
 6.  Whether or not the easement herein conveyed is exclusive, no other party shall be 
granted the right to use or shall use any part of the area within such easement for any purpose or 
in any manner until after a review and a finding by RCPSA in writing that such use will not be in 
conflict with, or inconvenient to, RCPSA’S use thereof or the purpose for which such easement 
was granted.  
 

7.  In consideration of the provision of public water, MOUNTAIN VIEW COURT 
INVESTMENTS LLC, the GRANOTR covenants as follows: 

DRAFT 



 
Page 2 of 2 

 

a) Not unreasonably increase lot lease, rent, or other charges to the tenants of 
MOUNTAIN VIEW COURT INVESTMENTS LLC for a period of seven years 
and should any increase occur, MOUNTAIN VIEW COURT INVESTMENTS 
LLC will notify the Russell County, County Administrator; and  

b) Not sell the property on which MOUNTAIN VIEW COURT INVESTMENTS 
LLC is situated for a period of seven years. Should the GRANTOR sell the subject 
property, he shall owe Russell County, Virginia a pro rata amount as follows:  

Year  Amount  
1  $  564,500  
2  $  483,857  
3  $  403,214  
4  $  322,571  
5  $  241,929  
6  $  161,286  
7  $     80,643  

 
 8.  This instrument covers all the agreements between the parties and no 
representations or statements, verbal or written, have been made which are inconsistent with the 
terms of this deed.  
 
 WITNESS the following signature and seal:  
 
 

_____________________________________________ 
TIMOTHY FIELDS 

                   
COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA 
COUNTY OF ____________________, to wit:  
 
 The foregoing Deed of Easement was acknowledged before me this the ___________ day 
of ______________, 2024 by TIMOTHY FIELDS. 
 
 Given under my hand this ________ day of __________________, 2016.  
 
  (Notary Public Seal) 
                                                                                 _____________________________________ 
                                                                                 Notary Public 
                                                                                 My commission expires_________________ 
               Notary Registration number ______________ 
 
WITNESS the following signature and seal:  
 
 

_____________________________________________ 
BREANNA FIELDS 

                   
COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA 
COUNTY OF ____________________, to wit:  
 
 The foregoing Deed of Easement was acknowledged before me this the ___________ day 
of ______________, 2024 by BREANNA FIELDS. 
 
 Given under my hand this ________ day of __________________, 2016.  
 
  (Notary Public Seal) 
                                                                                 _____________________________________ 
                                                                                 Notary Public 
                                                                                 My commission expires_________________ 
               Notary Registration number ______________ 

DRAFT 



Business and Employment Plan 
 

[Type here] 
 

1. The designates as its Section 3 Business and Employment Project Area the County of 
Russell. 

 
2. The Russell County Board of Supervisors, its contractors, and designated third parties shall 

in utilizing Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds utilize businesses and 
lower income residents of the County in carrying out all activities, to the greatest extent 
feasible. 

 
3. In awarding contracts for construction, non-construction, materials, and supplies the County, 

its contractors, and designated third parties shall take the following steps to utilize businesses 
which are located in or owned in substantial part by persons residing in the County: 
 
(a) The Russell County Board of Supervisors shall identify the contracts 

required to conduct the CDBG activities. 
 
(b) The Russell County Board of Supervisors shall identify through various 

and appropriate sources including: 
 
The Lebanon News 
 
the business concerns within the County which are likely to provide construction 
contracts, non-construction contracts, materials, and services which will be utilized in 
the activities funded through the CDBG. 

 
(c) The identified contractors and suppliers shall be included on bid lists used to obtain 

bids, quotes or proposals for work or procurement contracts which utilize CDBG funds. 
 
(d) To the greatest extent feasible the identified business and any other project area 

business concerns shall be utilized in activities which are funded with CDBG funds. 
 
4. The Russell County Board of Supervisors and its contractors and subcontractors shall take 

the following steps to encourage the hiring of lower income persons residing in the County: 
 

(a) The Russell County Board of Supervisors in consultation with its contractors (including 
design professionals) shall ascertain the types and number of positions for both trainees 
and employees which are likely to be used to conduct CDBG activities. 

 
(b) The Russell County Board of Supervisors shall advertise through the following sources 
   
 The Lebanon News 

  
 the availability of such positions with the information on how to apply. 
 
 (c) The Russell County Board of Supervisors, its contractors, and subcontractors shall be 

required to maintain a record of inquiries and applications by project area residents who 

DRAFT 



Business and Employment Plan 
 

[Type here] 
 

respond to advertisements, and shall maintain a record of the status of such inquires 
and applications. 

 
(d) To the greatest extent feasible, the Russell County Board of Supervisors, its contractors, 

and subcontractors shall hire lower income project area residents in filling training and 
employment positions necessary for implementing activities funded by the Community 
Development Block Grant (CDBG). 

 
5. In order to document compliance with the above affirmative actions and Section 3 of the 

Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, as amended, the Russell County Board 
of Supervisors shall keep, and obtain from its contractors and subcontractors, Registers of 
Contractors, Subcontractors and Suppliers and Registers of Assigned Employees for all 
activities funded by the CDBG.  Such listings shall be completed and shall be verified by site 
visits and employee interviews, crosschecking of payroll reports and invoices, and through 
audits if necessary. 

 

Duly adopted at the regular meeting of the ___ on ________ 2024 
 
 
 
 
 

_________________________________ 

Signature of Authorized Official 

 

DRAFT 



RESIDENTIAL ANTI-DISPLACEMENT AND 
RELOCATION ASSISTANCE PLAN CERTIFICATION 

 
The Russell County Board of Supervisors will replace all occupied and vacant occupiable 
low/moderate-income dwelling units demolished or converted to a use other than as 
low/moderate income dwelling unit as a direct result of activities assisted with funds 
provided under the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, as amended.  All 
replacement housing will be provided within three (3) years of the commencement of the 
demolition or rehabilitation relating to conversion.  
 
Before obligating or expending funds that will directly result in such demolition or 
conversion, the County will make public and advise the state that it is undertaking such 
an activity and will submit to the state, in writing, information that identifies: 
 
1. A description of the proposed assisted activity; 
 
2. The general location on a map and approximate number of dwelling units by size 

(number of bedrooms) that will be demolished or converted to a use other than as 
low/moderate-income dwelling units as a direct result of the assisted activity; 

 
3. A time schedule for the commencement and completion of the demolition or 

conversion; 
 
4. The general location on a map and approximate number of dwelling units by size 

(number of bedrooms) that will be provided as replacement dwelling units; 
 
5. The source of funding and a time schedule for the provision of replacement dwelling 

units; 
 
6. The basis for concluding that each replacement dwelling unit will remain a 

low/moderate-income dwelling unit for at least 10 years from the date of initial 
occupancy; and 

 
7. Information demonstrating that any proposed replacement of dwelling units with 

smaller dwelling units is consistent with the housing needs of low- and moderate- 
income households in the jurisdiction. 

 
The County will provide relocation assistance to each low/moderate – income household 
displace by the demolition of housing or by the direct result of assisted activities.  Such 
assistance shall be that provided under Section 104 (d) of the Housing and Community 
Development Act of 1974, as amended, or the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real 
Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970, as amended. 
 
 
The Russell County’s FY 24 project includes the following activities:  Water line 
construction, fire hydrant installation, ramp installation, and related appurtenances. 

DRAFT 



 
 
The activities as planned will not cause any displacement from or conversion of 
occupiable structures.  As planned, the project calls for the use of existing right-of-way or 
easements to be purchased or the acquisition of tracts of land that do not contain housing.  
Russell County will work with the grant management staff, engineers, project area 
residents, and the Department of Housing and Community Development to ensure that 
any changes in project activities do not cause any displacement from or conversion of 
occupiable structures.  
 
In all cases, an occupiable structure will be defined as a dwelling that meets local 
building codes or a dwelling that can be rehabilitated to meet code for $25,000 or less. 
 
 
 
      _____________________________                                                                         
      Lonzo Lester 
      County Administrator 
      Russell County Board of Supervisors 
 
 
      _______________________________                                                                           
      Date          

 

DRAFT 



DRAFT 



 
     Board of Supervisors                       Action Item B-1 

137 Highland Drive  Presenter: Chairperson 
Lebanon, VA 24266 

          Meeting: 4/8/24       6:00 PM 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Approval of Minutes  

Request approval of the minutes from the following meeting: 

• Unapproved minutes of March 2, 2024 
• Unapproved minutes of March 8, 2024      

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s): 
Board discretion 

 
SUGGESTED MOTION(s): 
Motion to approve Board Minutes. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 

• Board Minutes 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 DRAFT 



Page 2 of 2 
 

March 2, 2024 

A regular monthly meeting of the Russell County Board of Supervisors was held on Saturday, 
March 2, 2024 at 9:00 AM at the Russell County Government Center in Lebanon, Virginia. 

 

CALL TO ORDER & ROLL CALL 

The Clerk called the meeting to order. 

Roll Call by the Clerk: 

Present -  

Andrew Hensley 
Tara Dye 
David Eaton 
Steve Breeding 
Rebecca Dye 
Lou Ann Wallace 
Nate Kiser 
 
Lonzo Lester, Clerk 
Rhonda Lester, Deputy Clerk 
Terry Kilgore, County Attorney 
 
Absent - None 

 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Invocation performed by Jacob Musick, followed by the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag. 

 

APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 

Motion made by David Eaton, second Tara Dye and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
amend the agenda to: 

a) Table – Presentation by Matt Jordan – Appalachian Soccer Association  
b) Table – Request/RC Planning Commission Plats 
c) Add – Reports #6 & #7 

The vote was: 
Aye: Andrew Hensley, Tara Dye, David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Rebecca Dye, Lou Ann Wallace, 
and Nate Kiser  
Nay:  None 
Absent:  None 
 
PRESENTATIONS 
 

1. Shiloh Brooks – RC Tourism – 2023 Annual Tourism Presentation 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

1. Approval of Minutes: 
 

Motion made by Andrew Hensley, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of 
Supervisors to approve the February 3, 2024 minutes as presented and dispense with the 
reading thereof. 

 
The vote was: 
Aye: Andrew Hensley, Tara Dye, David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Rebecca Dye, and Nate Kiser 
Nay:  None 
Abstain: Lou Ann Wallace 

DRAFT 



Page 2 of 2 
 

Absent:  None 
 

2. Approval of Expenditures: 
 

Motion made by David Eaton, second Lou Ann Wallace and duly approved by the Board of 
Supervisors to approve the expenditures presented for payment. 
  
The vote was: 
Aye: Andrew Hensley, Tara Dye, David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Rebecca Dye, Lou Ann Wallace, 
and Nate Kiser  
Nay:  None 
Absent:  None 
 

3. Committee Appointments: 
 
Committee and Board Appointment Applications are currently being accepted. 

   
 

CITIZENS’ COMMENTS 
 
 The Chair opened the citizens’ comment period. 
 

1. The following citizens voiced their opposition to the proposed landfill at Moss III: 
 

Dana Tucker, Honaker 
Sarah Dungan, Raven 
Josh Burgess, Cleveland 
Betty Dickenson, Castlewood 
Jarred Ring, Castlewood 
Sherry Patton, Hansonville 

 Tammy Garrett, Lebanon 
 Tim McClannahan, Honaker 
 Randi Collins, Lebanon 
 Charles King, Jr., Belfast 
 Wanda Simerly, Cleveland 
 Bre Fife, California formerly from Cleveland 
 Larry Hughes, Lebanon 
 Oris Christian, Big Cedar Creek 
 David Dingus, Gravel Lick 
 Walter Dingus, Gravel Lick 

Amy Branson, Castlewood 
 Christina Caudill, Castlewood 
 Curt Salyers, Carbo 
 Tammy Miller, Finney 
 Larry Miller, Finney 
 Chad Terry, Gravel Lick 
 Kara Couch, Gravel Lick 
 Jennifer Chumbley, Cleveland 
  
 
COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR REQUESTS 
 

1. Motion made by David Eaton, second Nate Kiser and duly approved by the Board of 
Supervisors to approve the RC Disposal Truck Surplus – JM Wood Auction Co. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye: Andrew Hensley, Tara Dye, David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Rebecca Dye, Lou Ann Wallace, 
and Nate Kiser  
Nay:  None 
Absent: None   

 
2. Motion made by Andrew Hensley, second Tara Dye to approve the RC Planning Commission 

Organization membership reduction to include five members: Greg Stoots, John Mason, 
Phillip Addington, Tara Dye and Ernie McFaddin. 

DRAFT 



Page 2 of 2 
 

 
Substitute motion made by Lou Ann Wallace, second Rebecca Dye to remove the county 
liaison Tara Dye, remove Nate Kiser’s at-large member thus leaving six members that 
represent the six districts of the county.  
 
The vote for the substitute motion was: 
Aye: Andrew Hensley, Tara Dye, David Eaton, Steve Breeding, and Nate Kiser   
Nay:  Rebecca Dye, Lou Ann Wallace 
Absent: None 
By a Majority Vote, the Substitute Motion Failed 
 
The vote for the original motion was: 
Aye: Andrew Hensley, Tara Dye, David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Nate Kiser, and Rebecca Dye 
Nay:  Lou Ann Wallace 
Absent: None 
By a Majority Vote, the Original Motion Passed 
 

3. Motion made by Andrew Hensley, second Lou Ann Wallace  and duly approved by the Board 
of Supervisors to approve reducing the RC Planning Commission Organization meeting to 
every other month unless necessary business comes up, in which case, the chairman can 
call a meeting. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye: Andrew Hensley, Tara Dye, David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Rebecca Dye, Lou Ann Wallace, 
and Nate Kiser  
Nay:  None 
Absent: None 
 

4. Motion made by Tara Dye, second Nate Kiser and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors 
to approve the RC Cigarette & Meal Tax Ordinance Public Hearing. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye: Andrew Hensley, Tara Dye, David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Rebecca Dye, Lou Ann Wallace, 
and Nate Kiser  
Nay:  None 
Absent:  None 
 

5. Motion made by David Eaton, second Nate Kiser and duly approved by the Board of 
Supervisors to approve the Travel Request – State Public Library Meeting (3/20 – 3/23 2024). 
 
The vote was: 
Aye: Andrew Hensley, Tara Dye, David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Rebecca Dye, Lou Ann Wallace, 
and Nate Kiser  
Nay:  None 
Absent: None  
 

6. Motion made by David Eaton, second Lou Ann Wallace and duly approved by the Board of 
Supervisors to approve the Lebanon Little League Request for $27,875.00 to repair safety 
issues at the Glade Hollow Little League Park. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye: Andrew Hensley, Tara Dye, David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Rebecca Dye, Lou Ann Wallace, 
and Nate Kiser  
Nay:  None 
Absent:  None 
 

 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Motion made by David Eaton, second Nate Kiser and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
adjourn. 
 
The vote was: 

DRAFT 



Page 2 of 2 
 

Aye: Andrew Hensley, Tara Dye, David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Rebecca Dye, Lou Ann Wallace, and 
Nate Kiser  
Nay:  None 
Absent:  None   
 
The next regular monthly meeting is scheduled for Monday April 8, 2024 at 6:00 PM. 
 
 
 
 
_________________________                   _________________________ 
Clerk of the Board                                         Chairperson 
 

DRAFT 



Page 2 of 2 
 

March 8, 2024 

A public hearing of the Russell County Board of Supervisors was held on Friday, March 8, 2024 
at 7:00 PM at the Russell County Government Center in Lebanon, Virginia. 

 

CALL TO ORDER & ROLL CALL 

The Clerk called the meeting to order. 

Roll Call by the Clerk: 

Present -  

Andrew Hensley 
Tara Dye 
David Eaton 
Steve Breeding 
Rebecca Dye 
Lou Ann Wallace 
Nate Kiser 
 
Lono Lester, Clerk 
Rhonda Lester, Deputy Clerk 
Jeff Southard, Gentry Locke Law Firm 
David Paylor, Potesta Engineering & Environmental Consultants 
 
Absent - None 

 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Invocation performed by Jacob Musick, followed by the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag. 

 

APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 

Motion made by Nate Kiser, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the agenda as presented: 

The vote was: 
Aye: Andrew Hensley, Tara Dye, David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Rebecca Dye, Lou Ann Wallace, 
and Nate Kiser  
Nay:  None 
Absent:  None 
 
 
PRESENTATIONS (BOARD QUESTIONS) 
 

1. Landfill Presentation – Jeff Southard (Gentry Locke Law Firm); David Paylor – Potesta 
Engineering & Environmental Consultants; Lonzo Lester – County Administrator 

 
 
CITIZENS’ COMMENTS 
 
 The Chair opened the citizens’ comment period. 
 

1. The following citizens voiced their opposition to the proposed landfill at Moss III: 
 
Kerry McCormick, Artrip 
RD Snead, Lebanon 
David Dingus, Gravel Lick 
Charity Dingus, Castlewood 
Denise Blevins,  
Betty Dickenson, Castlewood 

DRAFT 



Page 2 of 2 
 

Dewight Miller, Swords Creek 
Raymond Harrison, Cleveland 
Jaylee Miller, Nash’s Ford 
Sherry Patton, Hansonville 
Larry Miller, Finney 
Larry Hughes, Lebanon 
Dave Cheek, River Mtn. Rd 
Jimmy Little, Gravel Lick 
Chad Terry, Gravel Lick 
Kara Couch, Gravel Lick 
Sarah Dungan, Raven 
Josh Burgess, Cleveland 
Amy Branson, Castlewood 
Gary Hughes, Comm. Church Rd 
Brandi Hurley 
Ben Price, Cedar Bluff 
Jennifer Chumbley, Cleveland 
James Gibbs, Bristol, VA 
Tammy Garrett, Lebanon 
Josh Miller, Abingdon, VA 
Tim Cywinski  
Ed Young, River Mtn Rd 
James Rasnake 
Brandon Moore 
Jarred Ring, Castlewood 
Sylvia Boyd, Lebanon 
John Lyttle, St Paul 
Walter Dingus, Gravel Lick 
Farrah Morgan 
Cameron Snead, Lebanon 
Amber Hobson, Lebanon 
Curt Salyers, Cleveland 
Christina Caudill, Castlewood 
John Dorsey 
James Greer 

 Angie McGlothlin, Honaker 
Tim Wallace, Cleveland 
 

Motion made by Nate Kiser, second Tara Dye to appoint a citizen advisory committee with Steve 
Breeding and Lou Ann Wallace to include:  David Cheek, David Miller, and Jarrod Ring 
 
The vote was: 
Aye: Andrew Hensley, Tara Dye, David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Rebecca Dye, and Nate Kiser  
Nay:  None 
Absent:  None   
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Motion made by David Eaton, second Andrew Hensley and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors 
to adjourn. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye: Andrew Hensley, Tara Dye, David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Rebecca Dye, Lou Ann Wallace, and 
Nate Kiser  
Nay:  None 
Absent:  None   
 
 
 
_________________________                   _________________________ 
Clerk of the Board                                         Chairperson 

DRAFT 



 
                                                      Board of Supervisors                         Action Item B-2 

137 Highland Drive Presenter: Chairperson 
Lebanon, VA 24266 

        Meeting: 4/8/24      6:00 PM 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Approval of Expenditures 

Request approval of the County’s March 2024 Monthly Expenditures: 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s):  
County’s March 2024 Monthly Expenditures are in compliance with budget and operational 

services. 

 
SUGGESTED MOTION(s): 
Motion to approve County’s March 2024 Monthly Expenditures. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 

• March 2024 Monthly Expenditures 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



 
Board of Supervisors  Action Item:  B-3 

137 Highland Drive Presenter: Chairperson  
Lebanon, VA 24266 

      Meeting: 4/8/24        6:00 PM 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
 
 
 
 

      Board Appointments 
 

 
 

**** Committee and Board Appointments Applications  
are currently being accepted. ***** 

DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



 

Board of Supervisors  Action Item C-1 – C-12 
137 Highland Drive Presenter: Administrator 
Lebanon, VA 24266 

                     Meeting: 4/8/24         6:00 PM 
 
 

 

County Administrator Reports & Requests 

The County Administrator Reports & Request for April 2024: 
 
 

REPORTS 
 
1. Russell County By-Laws Update……………………………………………………...C-1 
 
2. Russell County Road Reporting System…………………………………………….C-2 
 
3. VDOT Monthly Road System Report………..………………………………………..C-3 
 
REQUESTS 
  
4. RC CY 2024 Tax Rate and Public Hearing Notice……………………………….…C-4 
 
5. Pure Salmon Project – VDOT Resolution……………………………………………C-5 
 
6. CPRWMA Solid Waste User Agreement……………………………………………..C-6 
 
7. RC Park Ordinance Update…………………………………………………………….C-7 
 
8. 2024 March Primary Election Results………………………………………………..C-8 
 
9. RC Electoral Board ICE Scanner Tabulator………………………………………...C-9 
 
10. Honaker Little League Fence Repairs………………..……………..……………….C-10 
 
11. RC Kids Fishing Day Donation………………………………………………………..C-11 
 
12. RC Planning Commission Plats………………………………………………………C-12 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Russell County Government Center 
137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 

www.russellcountyva.us 

DRAFT 

http://www.russellcountyva.us/
http://www.russellcountyva.us/


By Laws 
Russell County  
• Adopted May 5, 2014 
 
Article I 
Russell County Board of Supervisors, Officers & Their Selection 
A. There shall be seven (7) members of the Board of Supervisors, six (6) elected 
for four-year terms by citizen vote of each of the six (6) Districts of Russell County 
and one (1) member elected at-large by the entire County for four years. 
 
B. The Officers of the Board of Supervisors shall consist of a Chairman and Vice Chairman, 
each of whom shall serve for a term of one (1) calendar year.  
 
C. Nomination of Officers shall be made from the Board at the first meeting of each calendar 
year.  Election of Officers shall follow immediately. 

D.  A standing Budget/Finance Committee shall be appointed by the newly elected Board 
Chairman.  This committee shall consist of two (2) Board members and two (2) staff 
members.  
 
Article II 
Duties of Officers 
A. The Chairman shall:  
(1) Preside at all meetings;  
(2) Work closely with the County Administrator on day to day matters, approve appropriate 
financial documents, and approve the agenda for all meetings; 
(3) Carry out such other duties as assigned by the Board.  
 
B. The Vice-Chairman shall act in the absence or inability of the Chairman to act. 
 
C. The Budget/Finance Committee shall be responsible for preparation of the annual County 
budget and for presentation during a regular or special Board meeting before a vote is taken 
on the Budget each year.  Other financial matters shall be considered by this committee 
before presentation to the full Board.  
 
Article III 
Agenda Preparation Policy 
A. The County Administrator shall prepare an agenda for each regular meeting of the Board 
of Supervisors. Supervisors, staff, and others may submit to the County Administrator items 
for the agenda at any time prior to Noon Wednesday of the week preceding the regular 
meeting to which such item relates. Emergency items will be added as an amendment to 
the agenda.  
 
B. Copies of the agenda shall be made available electronically for each Supervisor by close 
of business on Tuesday prior to the Board meeting and an agenda complete with a packet of 
materials for the Board members  and News Media serving the County and the public not 
later than close of business on Thursday preceding the meeting to which it relates.  
 

DRAFT 

Lonzo Lester
Underline

Lonzo Lester
Highlight

Lonzo Lester
Underline

Lonzo Lester
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight



Article IV 
Meetings 
A. The time and place of Board Meetings shall be set from time to time by resolution of the 
Board in conformance with State Law. The regular meeting schedule shall be set at the 
organizational meeting held in January each year.  
 
B. Minutes from the previous meeting shall be delivered to the Board members with the 
agenda prior to the next meeting. Unless requested by a Board member, the minutes will 
not be read and will be approved upon motion and vote of the Board.  
 
C. Order of Business 
(1) Commencement of Meetings:  
At the time established in accordance with Article IV (A) of these By-Laws for the 
commencement of regular meetings or at the hour specified for continued or special 
meetings, the Chairman shall call the meeting to order and shall direct the clerk to note the 
absence of any Board members by roll call. A quorum shall be required for commencement 
of any meeting.  
 
(2) Agenda:  
An agenda shall be prepared by the County Administrator in accordance with Article III 
under these By-laws. The proposed agenda shall be adopted by the Board at each meeting. 
The agenda will include under New Business “Reports from Designated Standing 
Committees”. Should the chairman or any member of the Board have a matter which he or 
she feels needs to be brought to the attention of the Board but which is not on the agenda, 
or if there is an amendment to the order of the agenda, he or she may make a motion that 
an addition or amendment be made to the agenda. Such amended agenda must be 
approved by a majority of the Board members present. 

D. Presentations: 
Matters to be presented to the Board may be arranged by persons prior to the meetings and 
placed on the Agenda.  The County Administrator must be notified by Wednesday of the 
week prior to the Board meeting.  Any materials to be used for the presentation must be 
provided and included in agenda packet.  Additional materials presented at the Board 
meeting must be approved by the Chairman prior to dissemination.  These presentations 
are strongly encouraged to be limited to five (5) minutes and when four (4) minutes has 
elapsed, the Chairman may instruct the speaker that one (1) minute is remaining.  
 
E. Quorum & Method of Voting 
A majority of the members of the Board of Supervisors shall constitute a quorum of the 
Board. All questions submitted to the Board for decision shall be determined by voice vote 
of a majority of the supervisors voting on any such questions, unless otherwise provided by 
law. The name of each member voting and how he or she voted must be recorded.  Roll Call 
votes may be requested by any Board member.  
 
F. Procedure for Roll Call of Board Members 
(1) The Members of the Board of Supervisors shall cast votes in district order on a rotating 
basis per meeting.  
(2) The Chairman of the Board of Supervisors shall cast the last vote. 
(3) The Chairman/Clerk shall restate all motions before a vote is taken and the result of the 

DRAFT 



vote shall be announced following each vote.  
 
G. General Rules of Procedure 
The Board’s Parliamentary Procedures shall be Robert’s Rules of Order, Newly Revised, 11th 
edition, specifically to include Section 49, Conduct of Business in Boards, pages 486 – 488, 
in all matters not covered by the Board’s bylaws, to the extent compatible with law and the 
historical practices of the Board. The County Attorney, or his or her designee, shall act as 
Parliamentarian to the Board. Any questions involving the interpretation or application of 
Robert’s Rules shall be addressed to the County Attorney. The Board may amend, by 
Resolution, the rules as it deems appropriate. The following rules shall apply:  
 
(1) Members are not required to obtain the floor before making motions or speaking, which 
they can do while seated.  
 
(2) All motions require a second except for nominations for appointments to other boards, 
authorities or commissions. 
 
(3) There is no limit to the number of times a member can speak to a question, and motions 
to close or limit debate generally should not be entertained.    
 
(4) Informal discussion of a subject is permitted while no motion is pending.  
 
(5) The Chairman can speak in discussion without leaving the chair, can vote on all 
questions, but cannot make motions unless by consent of a majority of Board members 
present.  
 
(6) No Board member is required to vote on any issue. If any Board member determines, 
prior to the calling of any issue before the Board, that he, because of conflict or otherwise, 
will abstain from voting on such issue, he shall announce such intention at the time the 
issue comes before the Board and shall not participate in the discussion on such issue or 
question. An abstention shall be counted for the purpose of determining a quorum. An 
abstention defeats a motion requiring a unanimous vote.  
 
(7) In the incidence of a tie vote, the issue voted upon by the Board is dead and therefore 
voted down. 
 
(8) If a primary or substitute motion is made at a Board meeting where at least six (6) 
members are present and the motion is voted on and fails, the same or a substantively 
similar motion cannot be reconsidered by the Board within the following twelve (12) months 
except by a primary or substitute motion made by a member of the Board who voted on the 
prevailing side where there are no less than six (6) Board members present, and only if 
two-thirds (2/3) of the Board members present vote to reconsider the action previously 
decided. 
 
(9) Only Board members and the Parliamentarian shall have standing to raise 
noncompliance with these General Rules of Procedure, and only during the current meeting 
at the time of violation. Failure of the Board to comply with these General Rules of 
Procedure shall not invalidate any action taken by the Board.  
 
H. Member Absenting Himself from Meeting Prior to Adjournment 
After the name of any member of the Board has been recorded as present at any meeting of 
the Board, he shall not absent himself from the remainder of the meeting prior to 
adjournment unless by consent of the Board.  

DRAFT 



 
I. Board to Sit with Open Doors 
The Board of Supervisors shall sit with open doors and all persons conducting themselves in 
an orderly manner may attend the meetings; however, the Board may hold closed sessions 
as permitted by law and when deemed necessary by a majority vote of the Board.  
 
A consent agenda shall be introduced by a motion “to approve” by any Board member, and 
shall be considered by the Board as a single item. There shall be no debate or discussion by 
any member of the Board regarding any item on the consent agenda. The Clerk or his/her 
designee shall provide a brief written summary or memo on each item included in the 
consent agenda. Upon request of any Board member who wishes to question or discuss an 
item, that item shall be removed from the Consent Agenda. This item shall be transferred 
onto the agenda for consideration.  
 
J. Citizens Comment Period  
Rules for Citizen Comment Period 
To ensure that the affairs of the Board and its committees may be conducted in an orderly 
manner, to ensure that all persons desiring to address the Board on matters pertinent to it 
are afforded an opportunity to do so, to permit persons in attendance to observe and hear 
the proceedings of the Board without distraction, and to permit to the fullest extent the 
Board to conduct County business with minimal disruption, the following rules are 
established.  
 
(1) Each person desiring to speak during the Citizens’ Comment period on the agenda must 
provide name and address prior to their comments.  
 
(2) Each speaker  is strongly encouraged to limit remarks to a period of three (3) minutes 
per comment period; when two (2) minutes have passed the speaker  may be reminded 
that there is one (1) minute remaining.  
 
(3) Speakers may not donate their time to other speakers.  
 
(4) Speakers will not be permitted to use audiovisual materials or other visual displays, but 
may present written and photographic materials to the Board members.  
 
(5) Comments must be confined to matters germane to the business of the Board of 
Supervisors and shall not be cumulative or repetitive.  
 
(6) Speakers should address the Board with decorum – loud, boisterous, and disruptive 
behavior, obscenity, and vulgarity should be avoided as well as other words or acts tending 
to evoke violence or deemed to be a breach of the peace.  
 
(7) The Citizens’ Comment period is not intended to be a question and answer period or 
time for dialogue with County officials. Questions which are raised during a comment period 
may at the discretion of the Board be responded to by County officials after sufficient time 
for appropriate investigation.  
 
(8) Speakers shall remain at the podium while addressing the Board.  
 
(9) Speakers shall not be interrupted by audience comments, calls/whistles, laughter, or 
other gestures. Individuals in the audience who do not abide by this policy after a warning 
will be asked to leave the meeting.  
 

DRAFT 



(10) Expressive activities including, but not limited to, petitioning, picketing, displaying 
signs and posters, solicitation, demonstrating, pamphlet distribution, and conducting polls 
shall not be permitted within the Governmental Center Building or in any other building that 
the Board is meeting.  
 
These rules do not preclude persons from delivering to the Board or its Clerk written 
materials including reports, statements, exhibits, letters, or signed petitions or to prohibit 
persons from presenting oral or written comments on any subject germane to the business 
of the Board to individual Board members or to the Board through its Clerk outside the 
context of the public meeting.  
 
K. Agenda Item Procedure 
The following guidelines shall be followed for comment addressed to specific agenda items:  
 
(1) In order to prevent obvious questions from consuming Board Meeting time, the 
Chairman and/or designated person(s) will advise the speaker if a matter is to be 
considered during some other time during the meeting. 
 
Article V  
Procedure for Dealing with Items Not on the Agenda 
A. All matters not on the agenda must be raised during citizens comment period. Any 
matter not on the agenda shall not be considered unless approved for consideration by the 
majority of the Board present in accordance with Article IV, C (2).  
 
B. For any special meeting, the business to be discussed shall be stated in the call for such 
meeting. The Chairman or Administrator shall prepare a written agenda listing all items to 
be considered for every special meeting. No other business shall be discussed or acted upon 
unless approved for consideration by the majority of the Board present in accordance with 
Article IV, C (2).  
 
Article VI 
Public Hearings 
A. All public hearings will be advertised in accordance with the Virginia Code. Public hearings 
may be postponed, continued or canceled at the discretion of the Board.  
 
B. In addition to those required by law, the Board at its discretion may hold public hearings 
when it decides that a hearing will be in the public interest.  
 
C. The case before the Board shall be summarized by the Chairman or designated 
person(s). If there is expected to be many speakers on the issue, interested parties wishing 
to speak must sign the register at the rear of the room prior to the start of the hearing. 
Each person wishing to speak will be called to the podium by the Chairman or designated 
person(s) in the order such person signed the register and must state his or her name and 
address for the record. Generally, each citizen should be provided an opportunity to speak.  
Each speaker shall be limited to three (3) minutes, unless waived by the Board.  
 
D. Board Members shall limit their comments in public hearings to insure participation by 
the public without Board interference. 

DRAFT 



 
Article VII 
Appointment of Committees 
Appointments to committees of the Board may be made by the Chairman.  Appointments to 
other authorities, boards, and commissions, shall be made only by member motion adopted 
by a majority of the full Board. Prior to consideration of the nomination, the nominee shall 
be notified to determine his or her willingness to serve and to determine if he or she meets 
the qualifications for such appointment.  
 
Article VIII 
Duties of the County Administrator 
The County Administrator shall:  
 
A. Prepare the agenda for each meeting for approval in conformance with the agenda 
preparation procedure outlined in these bylaws.  
 
B. Keep a written record of all business transacted by the Board.  
 
C. Administer the financial control procedures of the County.  
 
D. Advise and inform the Board on all matters affecting County government.  
 
E. Execute all formal documents authorized by the Board of Supervisors.  
 
F. Provide and supervise all staff services directly under the control of the Board of 
Supervisors.  
 
G. The County Administrator shall be responsible for all personnel management of the 
County. Department Directors, Coordinators, Supervisors or Managers will be hired and 
dismissed with the consent of a majority of the Board of Supervisors.  
 
H. Prepare an annual operating budget for the County government in accordance with 
guidelines established by the State auditor’s office for approval by the Board of Supervisors. 
He shall be responsible for maintaining adequate financial and accounting records on all 
County business under his control.  
 
I. Serve as the Board’s representative in all circumstances where the Chairman, Vice 
Chairman, or a majority of the Board Members are not available.  
 
J. Perform all other duties delegated by the Board as required by law.  

Article IX 
Amendments 
A. The Bylaws may be amended by a recorded majority vote of the entire membership of 
the Board provided that written notice has been given to all members of the Board and a 
copy of the proposed amendment is sent with the notice, prior to said meeting.  

DRAFT 



 
B. The Bylaws may be suspended in whole or in part only upon the unanimous vote of Board 
members present, relating to any matter before it. 

DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



Russell County BOS 

VDOT Update  
Apri1 1, 2024 

Board Action Requests 

The Residency has no requests for action this month. 

Maintenance Activities - Completed  

Maintenance activities in March included the following: 

• Spot ditching and pipe cleaning was conducted on segments of Routes 82 and 654.

• Maintenance activities (grading / spreading gravel) was completed on segments of Route 621.

• Limited pothole patching was conducted on Routes19, 58, 67 and 80.

• Down trees / debris was removed from segments of Routes 19,67, 80, 614,624, 635, 640 and 654.

• Small slides were repaired on Routes 603 and 622.

• Boom ax (brush cutting) operations were conducted on segments of Routes 640, 645 and 1050.

• Shoulder repairs were completed on Route 19.

Maintenance Activities - Planned 

• Boom ax work on various routes throughout the County.

• Pavement Repairs (machine patching) on Route 615

• Debris removal on various routes (down trees and rocks/slides).

• Removal of dead trees on Routes 80 (Hayter's Gap), 71 and 65.

• Ditching at various locations through the County.

• Drainage / slope stabilization in the median of Route 19 (Bypass) near Coal Tipple Hollow.

• Pothole patching, particularly once asphalt plants re-open for the season; anticipated in mid-April.

Rural Rustic / 6 Year Plan Projects 

The residency is beginning plan sketch preparation and initiating the environmental review process for projects 
planned (Route 671 and 824) for the coming construction season. 

DRAFT 



 

 

 

Non — VDOT Projects 

 

Pure Salmon Project 

The access road design into the project from Route 19 has been approved by the Residency. 
 

Three Rivers Destination Center 

No new activity this month on this project. 

 

DRAFT 



 
  

Russell County Virginia 
“The Heart of Southwest Virginia” 

 
Andrew Hensley  Rebecca Dye 
District 1   District 6  
 
Lou Ann Wallace                  Steve Breeding, Chairman Nathan Kiser 
District 2               District 5 At-Large  
   
Tara Dye                 David Eaton, Vice-Chairman Lonzo Lester 
District 3              District 4 County Administrator 
 

Russell County Government Center 
137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 

www.russellcountyva.us 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
                             Tax Dates 

   2023  
Real Estate, Personal Property, and Machine & Tool   May 25th  
Merchant's Capital and Mineral Taxes   November 25th   
Mineral Tax Reporting Date   February 1st  

        Tax Rates 
   2022         2023  
Real Estate $ 0.63  $    0.63  
Mobile Homes $ 0.63  $    0.63  
Personal Property $ 1.95  $    1.95  
Machinery & Tools $         1.95  $    1.95  
Merchant's Capital $ 0.65  $            0.65  

 
 Proposed Fiscal Year 2023/2024 County-Wide Budget & Calendar Year 2023 Tax Rates 

Public review available at: 
Board of Supervisors’ Office 

137 Highlands Drive, Lebanon, Virginia 24266 
Russell County Website (Financial Statements) - www.russellcountyva.gov          

Authorized by Russell County Board of Supervisors   

 DRAFT 

http://www.russellcountyva.gov/


 
  

Russell County Virginia 
“The Heart of Southwest Virginia” 

 
Andrew Hensley  Rebecca Dye 
District 1   District 6  
 
Lou Ann Wallace                  Steve Breeding, Chairman Nathan Kiser 
District 2               District 5 At-Large  
   
Tara Dye                 David Eaton, Vice-Chairman Lonzo Lester 
District 3              District 4 County Administrator 
 

Russell County Government Center 
137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 

www.russellcountyva.us 

  

 

 

 

 

 

RESOLUTION 
At a regularly scheduled meeting of the Russell County Board of Supervisors held on April 8, 2024, 
on a motion by ____________, seconded by _____________, the following resolution was adopted 
by a vote of ___ to ___: 

WHEREAS, Russell County desires to assist in the development of the property for the purpose 
of economic development located on Route 19 in the County of Russell Virginia, at the Russell 
County and Tazewell Counties Line at the Pure Salmon Virginia, LLC; and 

WHEREAS, this property is expected to be the site of new private capital investment in land, 
building, and manufacturing equipment which will provide substantial employment; and 

WHEREAS, the Project consists of the development of a vertically integrated Atlantic Salmon 
Farm, including hatchery, nursery, smolt, and to post-smolt grow-out producing full market size fish. 

WHEREAS, the subject property has no access to a public street or highway and will require the 
construction of a new roadway to connect with Route 19; and 

WHEREAS, the existing public road network does not provide for adequate access to this 
property, and it is deemed necessary that improvements be made to Route 19; and 

WHEREAS, the County of Russell hereby guarantees that the necessary environmental analysis, 
mitigation, fee simple right of way and utility relocations or adjustments, if necessary, for this project 
will be provided at no cost to the Economic Development, Airport and Rail Access Fund; and 

WHEREAS, the County of Russell acknowledges that no land disturbance activities may occur 
within the limits of the proposed access project prior to appropriate notification from the Department 
of Transportation as a condition of the use of the Economic Development, Airport and Rail Access 
Fund; and 

WHEREAS, the County of Russell hereby acknowledges that the Virginia Department of 
Transportation’s Economic Development Access (EDA) Program may provide up to a maximum of 
$500,000 for the project and requires matching funding up to $125,000 of coal severance funds from 
the County of Russell for estimated eligible project costs over $500,000, up to $800,000; and 

 

DRAFT 



 

 

WHEREAS, the County hereby guarantees that financing of all ineligible project costs, project 
costs exceeding the EDA Program project allocation, EDA Program required locality matching 
funds, if applicable, and all costs not justified by eligible capital outlay will be provided from sources 
other than those administered by the Virginia Department of Transportation. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT:  The Russell County Board of Supervisors 
hereby requests that the Commonwealth Transportation Board provide Economic Development 
Access Program funding to provide adequate road access to this property; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT: The County of Russell hereby agrees to provide a surety 
acceptable to and payable to the Virginia Department of Transportation, in the full amount of the 
Commonwealth Transportation Board's allocation less eligible private capital outlay credit as 
determined by VDOT; this surety shall be exercised by the Department of Transportation in the 
event that sufficient qualifying capital investment does not occur on Pure Salmon Virginia LLC, 
Parcel ID# 30L56A and 30L56C within five years of the Commonwealth Transportation Board's 
allocation of funds pursuant to this request; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT: The Russell County Board of Supervisors hereby request 
for roadway to be maintained by VDOT that the new roadway so constructed will be added to and 
become a part of the secondary system of state highways  pursuant to § 33.2-1509, paragraph C., of 
the Code of Virginia. 

 

 
 (SEAL)    A COPY TESTE:  
              Steve Breeding, Chairperson 
  
 

DRAFT 



 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
  DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

 2111 BONHAM ROAD 

BRISTOL, VIRGINIA  24201-2002 

      Stephen C. Brich, P. E.                                                                                                                     
        COMMISSIONER 
                                                             

VirginiaDOT.org 

WE KEEP VIRGINIA MOVING 
 

Date:  March 8, 2024 
 
Russell County Board of Supervisors 
Attn.:  Mr. Lonzo Lester, County Administrator 
137 Highland Dr., Suite A 
Lebanon, VA 24266 
 
RE: Pure Salmon Commercial Entrance and Access Road 
 Route 19 
 Russell County (083) 
 
Mr. Lester: 
 
Regarding the ongoing Pure Salmon project and pursuant to our meeting regarding same at the Lebanon 
Residency on February 28, 2024, the Department offers the following: 

1. The Department has reviewed roadway design per the access road plans dated 05-11-2022.  The 
roadway design is acceptable.  Please note that the Department’s approval of the roadway design 
expires in three years if work has not begun.  Approval of the plans alone does not constitute 
addition of the street into the Secondary System of State Highways.  The road must be 
constructed to plan and inspected prior to acceptance. 

a. The roadway plans are from the existing Route 19 right of way line to the cul-de-sac.  
The commercial entrance onto Route 19, the related turn lane, and the storm water 
management basin (DEQ SWM #: 2020-0257-1) have previously been permitted under 
VDOT Land Use Permit 104-39140, issued to Pure Salmon Virginia LLC.  This permit 
was issued on 03-13-2023, extended on 03-13-2024, and has a current expiration date of 
03-12-2025. 

2. Roadway slopes are of concern to VDOT.  The underlying geology is such that stability of these 
slopes on such a steep grade is now in question due to the amount of fractured rock observable in 
the slopes. 

a. It should be noted that the slopes are contained within a permanent easement (i.e., not 
within the right of way).  VDOT’s maintenance of these slopes will be limited to 
resolving any maintenance issues occurring within the easements that are adversely 
affecting maintenance of the right of way and travel on the road. 

b. The project engineer should review the geotechnical data to determine if the existing 
slopes should be flattened or otherwise modified for stability. 

3. In our meeting of February 28, 204 you indicated that an application for Economic Access 
Funding would be submitted for the roadway construction.  As the site is physically located in 
Russell County, any application for Economic Access Funding must be submitted by Russell 
County. 

a. You indicated that this was a joint venture between Buchanan County, Russell County, 
and Tazewell County.  Please note that VDOT will consider the Russell County Board of 
Supervisors as the primary contact for the Economic Access Road project, because 
Russell County must apply for the funding. 

DRAFT 



  

 

b. CTB approval of Economic Access funding applications takes approximately 4-6 months, 
while meeting CTB contingencies can take another two or more months. 

c. Projects with a cost of more than $500,000 must complete the State Environmental 
Review Process prior to advertisement or land disturbance activities.   This process 
typically takes up to 90 days. 

d. Please note that any expenses incurred by the locality prior to the approval of the 
Economic Access funding are ineligible for reimbursement. 

4. Should the county decide to not pursue Economic Access funding, the street could only be added 
under the VDOT Secondary Street Acceptance Requirements (SSAR). 

a.   Addition of routes under the SSAR require posting of fees and surety prior to 
acceptance. 

 
At present, the following is the list of official contacts the Department has for this project.  Should you 
need to add or revise contacts for the project, please notify the Department. 
 
Russel County Board of Supervisors 
Attn.:  Mr. Lonzo Lester 
137 Highland Dr, Suite A 
Lebanon, VA 24266 
lonzo.lester@russellcountyva.us 
 

Pure Salmon Virginia LLC 
Attn.:  Mr. Paul Innskeep 
4701 Cox Rd, Suite 285 
Glen Allen, VA 23060 
paul.innskeep@pure-salmon.com 
 

Pure Salmon Virginia LLC 
Attn.:  Mr. Brandon Thorne 
4701 Cox Rd, Suite 285 
Glen Allen, VA 23060 
brandon.thorne@pure-salmon.com 
 

Timmons Group 
Attn.:  Mr. Josh MacDonald, P.E. 
1001 Boulders Parkway, Suite 300 
Richmond, VA 23225 
Josh.MacDonald@timmons.com 

Please contact the VDOT Lebanon Residency if you have any questions or concerns.   
 
Sincerely, 
 

Jeff Buchanan 
 
Jeff Buchanan 
Assistant Resident Engineer 
VDOT Lebanon Residency 
P.O. Box 127 
Lebanon, VA 24266 
(276) 889-7601 
jeff.buchanan@vdot.virginia.gov 
 
 
Cc:   Pure Salmon Virginia LLC 
 Timmons Group 
 Buchanan County Board of Supervisors 
 Tazewell County Board of Supervisors 
 Senator Travis Hackworth 
 Delegate William Morefield 
 

  

DRAFT 



Pure Salmon Virginia
REV 2 - March 19th, 2024

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Engineering & Pricing 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18

Access Road 1 2 3 4 5 6 7

Stormwater Management 1 2 3

Hardscaping/Landscaping 1 2 3 4 5

Surcharge Settling 1 2 3 4 5 6 7

Water Needed On Site 1

Earthwork 1 2 3 4

Construction 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21

Commissioning & Performance Test 1 2 3 4 5 6 7

Fish 1

Earthwork 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

Construction 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21

Commissioning & Performance Test 1 2 3 4 5

Fish 1

Earthwork 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

Construction 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23

Commissioning & Performance Test 1 2 3 4 5 6

Fish 1

Earthwork 1 2 3 4 5 6 7

Construction 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

Commissioning & Performance Test 1 2 3 4 5

Fish 1

Earthwork 1 2 3

Construction 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

Commissioning & Performance Test 1 2 3 4 5

Earthwork 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9

Construction 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23

Commissioning & Performance Test 1 2 3 4

Fish 1

Construction 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

Construction 1 2 3 4 5 6 7

Construction 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12

Construction 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12

18-Mar-2024

Building A

Building C

Building D

Building E

2024 2025 2026 2027 2028

Oxygen Plant

Site

Building G

 Processing & Pet Treat

Chiller Plant

Electrical Building

CWWT Plant DRAFT 



 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING MINUTES 

May 9, 2023, 12:00 P.M. 

101 N. 14th Street, 11th Floor Board Room 

Richmond, Virginia 23219 

Available by Public Teleconference: (866) 845-1266, 65069804# 

I. Chairman Bew called the meeting to order 12:04 p.m. and welcomed the Board and guests. 

a) Board Directors present: Chairman Ronald Bew, Vice Chairman Linh Hoang, and Ms. Mary 

Margaret Kastelberg, and Messrs. Ronald Hobson, Ronnie Johnson, Michael Joyce, Jay 

Mahone, Willis Morris, William Smith 

b) Board Directors absent: Ms. Victoria Vasques, and Messrs. John Dane, David Richardson, 

c) VSBFA Staff present:  Mses. Shari Adams, Anna Mackley, and Angela Reese, and Mr. Joe 

Shearin 

d) Others present:  Ms. Lala Paola Korall (Vice President Business Development, European 

Business Development Inc), and Messrs. Don Ferguson (Senior Assistant, Attorney General of 

Virginia), Michael Graff (Partner, McGuireWoods LLP), Brandon Thorne (Chief Financial 

Officer, Pure-Salmon Virginia), Mark Shea (Director, Wells Fargo Corporate Investment 

Banking), Karim Ghannam (Co-Founder & CEO, 8F Asset Management), Paul Inskeep 

(Project Manager, Pure Salmon Virginia) 

II. Approval of Minutes 

Motion by Mr. Joyce and seconded by Mr. Johnson to approve the April 11, 2023 Board of 

Directors Meeting Minutes subject to one correction, Motion carried. Voting aye: Ms. Kastelberg, 

and Messrs. Bew, Hoang, Hobson, Johnson, Joyce, Mahone, Morris, and Smith. Voting nay: None. 

III. Chairman Bew opened the public hearing at 12:05 p.m. 

IV. Tax-Exempt Bond Project 

a) The Dominion School Incorporated – Fairfax County – Approval of Final Resolution 

authorizing the issuance of $16,000,000 in Tax-Exempt Revenue Bonds 

Ms. Mackley presented with Mr. Graff the Dominion School Inc. final resolution of 

$16,000,000 in tax-exempt revenue bonds to finance (i) a portion of the cost of the acquisition 

of 5.5 acres of land and the buildings located in Herndon Virginia; (ii) and finance the cost of 

issuing the bonds. 

Pursuant to presentations, Chairman Bew called for the motion to adopt the resolution. Mr. 

Joyce motioned to adopt the resolution as submitted, seconded by Ms. Kastelberg, Motion 

carried. Voting aye: Ms. Kastelberg, and Messrs. Bew, Hoang, Hobson, Johnson, Joyce, 

Mahone, Morris, and Smith. Voting nay: None.  

b) National Senior Campuses Inc. – Fairfax Count – Approval of Resolution and Supplement 

Agreement to amend Series B of the 2020 NSC bond issuance. 

DRAFT 

Steve Breeding
Highlight

Steve Breeding
Highlight

Steve Breeding
Highlight



VSBFA Board of Directors Meeting Minutes – May 9, 2023 Page 2 

Ms. Mackley presented with Mr. Graff the National Senior Campuses Inc. resolution and 

supplement agreement to amend Series B of the 2020 NSC bond issuance. The amendments 

were requested due to the interest rate applicable to the bonds being based upon LIBOR and, 

in contemplation of the cessation of LIBOR on June 30, 2023 

Pursuant to presentations, Chairman Bew called for the motion to adopt the resolution. Mr. 

Hoang motioned to adopt the resolution as submitted, seconded by Mr. Smith, Motion carried. 

Voting aye: Ms. Kastelberg, and Messrs. Bew, Hoang, Hobson, Johnson, Joyce, Mahone, 

Morris, and Smith. Voting nay: None. 

c) Pure Salmon Virginia, LLC – Approval of Inducement Resolution for up to $402,600,000 of 

Tax-exempt and taxable bonds 

Ms. Mackley presented, with Ms. Korall, and Messers. Graff, Thorne, Inskeep, Shea, and 

Ghannam, Pure Salmon Virginia, LLC inducement resolution to finance the cost of the Project, 

certain costs of issuance, if any, of the Bonds and, if and as necessary, working capital, 

capitalized interest on the Bonds and reserves for the Project or the Bonds. The Project consists 

of the development of a vertically integrated Atlantic salmon farm, including hatchery, nursery, 

smolt and to post-smolt grow-out producing full market size fish. 

Pursuant to presentations, Chairman Bew called for the motion to adopt the resolution. Mr. 

Hobson motioned to adopt the resolution as submitted, seconded by Mr. Smith, Motion carried. 

Voting aye: Ms. Kastelberg, and Messrs. Bew, Hoang, Hobson, Johnson, Joyce, Mahone, 

Morris, and Smith. Voting nay: None. 

V. Chairman Bew closed the public hearing at 1:11 p.m. 

VI. Board Review and Ratification 

a) The Board reviewed the two (2) credit support transactions approved by management in 

aggregate of $1,535,000. 

Pursuant to review, Chairman Bew called for the motion to adopt the resolution to ratify. Mr. 

Johnson motioned, seconded by Mr. Hoang, Motion carried. Voting aye: Ms. Kastelberg, and 

Messrs. Bew, Hoang, Hobson, Johnson, Joyce, Mahone, Morris, and Smith. Voting nay: None. 

VII. Financial Statements 

a) Ms. Adams presented the Board with VSBFA Financial statements followed by discussion. 

VIII. Other Business  

a) Discussion about Interim Executive Director’s insight into the needs of VSBFA regarding 

technology, and marketing. 

IX. Public Comment Period 

Chairman Bew called for comments from the public. Hearing none the comment period was closed 

at 2:04 p.m. 

X. Having no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 2:04 p.m. 

DRAFT 

Steve Breeding
Highlight



USER AGREEMENT  
Page | 1  

USER AGREEMENT 
FOR  

SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL 
 

 THIS AGREEMENT, made and executed this the    day of   , 2024 

by and between the COUNTY OF DICKENSON, Virginia, the COUNTY OF BUCHANAN, 

Virginia, and the COUNTY OF RUSSELL, Virginia, political subdivisions of the 

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA, hereinafter referred to as “Users,” and the 

CUMBERLAND PLATEAU WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY, a body politic and 

corporate and a political subdivision of the COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA,  an Authority 

created by the aforesaid Users,  pursuant to the Virginia Water and Sewer Authorities Act, 

hereinafter referred to as “Authority.” 

ARTICLE I – BASIC INTENT AND PURPOSE 

1. This Agreement is entered into as authorized by the Virginia Water and Waste 

Authorities Act, Va. Code Ann. § 15.2-5100 et seq. (hereinafter the “Act”). 

2. The Authority has all the powers, rights and duties as described in the Act and as 

specified in its Articles of Incorporation and may exercise the same in the 

performance of its functions as set out in the Act. 

3. The purposes for which the Authority was created are to acquire, purchase, lease 

as lessee, construct, reconstruct, improve, extend, operate, maintain and finance a 

Garbage and Refuse Collection and Disposal System, as that term is defined in the 

Act, within, without, or partly within and partly without the Counties of 

Buchanan, Dickenson and Russell, Virginia. 

4. The Authority, subject to the terms and conditions hereinafter set out, desires to 

maintain a safe, sanitary and environmentally sound Disposal System (hereinafter 

defined) and for and by such Disposal System to accept and dispose of the 

Disposable Solid Waste (as the term is defined herein, and hereinafter referred to 

as DSW) of the Users. 

5. The Users, subject to the terms and conditions hereinafter set out, desire to use the 

Authority’s Disposal System for the disposal of DSW generated within, collected 

by, or otherwise under the control of the User. 

DRAFT 



USER AGREEMENT  
Page | 2  

6. The Disposal System shall be established, operated and maintained in accordance 

with the Authority’s Plan of Operation, attached hereto and made a part hereof, 

which is intended to be effective upon the date of execution of this Agreement, 

and which may be amended by the Authority from time to time. 

ARTICLES II – DEFINITIONS 

1. Disposable Solid Waste (hereinafter DSW) – Any Solid Waste other than 

Hazardous Waste, specifically including Processible Solid Waste, Special Waste 

(approved, as set forth in the Plan of Operation) and Non-Processible Solid Waste 

(as such terms are defined in the Plan of Operation). 

2.  Disposal System – All those facilities owned, leased or operated by the Authority 

designed to collect, manage and/or dispose of Solid Waste and those designed to 

accomplish recycling and/or volume waste reduction by methods other than 

DSW; and the land, structures, vehicles and equipment for use in connection 

therewith.  

3. Hazardous Waste – a Solid Waste or combination of Solid Waste which, because 

of its quantity, concentration or physical, chemical or infectious characteristics 

may: (a) cause or significantly contribute to an increase in mortality or an increase 

in serious irreversible, or incapacitating reversible, illness; or (b) pose a 

substantial present or potential hazard to human health, the Disposal System, or 

the environment when improperly treated, stored, transported, disposed of or 

otherwise managed. The foregoing definition is intended to include any waste 

now or hereafter designated as “hazardous” by State or Federal agencies 

(including the United States Environmental Protection Agency) with jurisdiction 

and authority to promulgate and enforce rules and regulations for the handling and 

disposal of hazardous and other wastes. 

4. Non-Conforming Waste – (a) Any waste excluded from the definition of Solid 

Waste and (b) Special Waste (as defined in the Plan of Operation) which has not 

been approved by the Authority. 

5. Plan of Operation – A plan adopted by the Authority, as amended or 

supplemented, setting forth the types of material acceptable to the Authority for 

DRAFT 



USER AGREEMENT  
Page | 3  

disposal, the times and places where material will be received by the Authority, 

the methods of collecting fees charged by the Authority for disposal service, and 

such other information as will describe operational procedures, control use of the 

Disposal System and provide instruction and guidelines to users of the Disposal 

System. The Plan of Operation shall be marked as Exhibit “A” and incorporated 

by reference into this User Agreement.  Said Plan of Operation shall be subject to 

annual review at the same time this User Agreement is subject to annual review.  

If any changes are made to the Plan of Operation by the parties, such changes 

shall also be subject to the approval of the Department of Environmental Quality.  

6. Solid Waste – Any garbage, trash, brush, refuse, sludge (as defined in the Plan of 

Operation) and other discarded material, including solid, liquid, semi-solid or 

contained gaseous material, resulting from industrial, commercial, mining and 

agricultural operations and from community activities and residences, but does 

not include: (i) solid and dissolved materials in domestic sewage; (ii) solid or 

dissolved material in irrigation return flows or in industrial discharges which are 

sources subject to permit from the State Water Control board; (iii) source, special 

nuclear, or by-product material as defined by the Federal Atomic Energy Act of 

1954, as amended; (iv) to the extent such Solid Waste is transported from the 

Transfer Stations to any landfill operated by an entity other than the Authority, 

and other materials not allowed under the permits, licenses and approvals relating 

to such landfill; or (v) asbestos. 

7.  Tipping Fee – The charge made by the Authority for the disposal of DSW (as set 

forth in the Plan of Operation). The Tipping Fee shall be calculated by 

determining the total of: (a) the disposal fee charged by any landfill operator with 

whom the Authority may contract for the ultimate disposal of any Solid Waste 

delivered hereunder; (b) the amount of principal premium, if any, and interest or 

any other amounts due, or to become due, with respect to any indebtedness of the 

Authority or required to avoid a default with respect to such indebtedness; and (c) 

all expenses of the Authority relating to the operation and maintenance of the 

Disposal System as per the line item budget approved annually by the Authority 

Board, excluding administrative costs defined below) including any reserves 

DRAFT 



USER AGREEMENT  
Page | 4  

required by Authority. This amount shall be divided by the tonnage projected to 

be received to derive a cost per ton to be charged for use of the Disposal System.    

The tipping fee is the same for all three member counties per the components of 

this paragraph.  However, transportation costs for each member county is 

determined by mileage from the county’s transfer station to the landfill. The cost 

per mile will be uniform for each county with only the actual mileage varying. 

The Authority will invoice each county separately for its transportation costs.  

The parties agree to annually review the component costs making up the tipping 

fee and transportation costs to make appropriate annual adjustment to said tipping 

fee and transportation costs (costs per mile). The annual adjusted tipping fee and 

transportation costs are subject to the approval of the Board of Supervisors of 

each of the Users and the Board of the Authority.  Once the User Agreement is 

approved either initially or upon subsequent annual reviews, said approved User 

Agreement shall be binding on all the parties.    It is acknowledged by all the 

parties that the landfill charge is based on a five year contract that is procured 

pursuant to 15.2-5136.  The parties further acknowledge that the Authority is 

contractually bound by this five year contract in regard to the landfill charge and 

bound by another contract for transportation charges.  The parties agree that such 

contracts are binding upon the Authority and while in effect restrict the 

Authority’s ability to make any adjustments to landfill contract costs and 

transportation contract costs.  However, the parties further agree that the 

contract for access to the landfill and the contract for transportation services to 

transport the solid waste from the transfer stations to the landfill are subject to 

review and approval of the Board of Supervisors of the three Users.    

8. Administrative Fee—The Authority has administrative costs that include items in 

the current Authority fiscal line item budget as approved by the Authority Board. 

These costs include, but are not limited to, IT support, bookkeeping costs, salary 

and fringe benefits of Authority employees, legal costs, office rental, and VACO 

insurance.   The Authority will present its proposed line item annual budget for 

the upcoming year to the member County Administrators annually on or before 

DRAFT 



USER AGREEMENT  
Page | 5  

March 15 to be included in each County Board of Supervisor’s next monthly 

meeting agenda for review and approval .   

The total monthly administrative costs of the Authority shall be divided equally 

among the Users and paid through monthly invoices submitted to the Users by the 

Authority.    

ARTICLE III – TERM OF AGREEMENT 
1. This Agreement shall become effective and operations hereunder shall commence on 

or about July 1st, 2024. This Agreement shall be binding upon the parties, 

commencing upon the execution hereof, and extending for a period of one (1) year.  

Prior to the end of the one-year term, any further extensions must be approved by the 

Board of Supervisors of each of the User and the Authority Board annually.  

ARTICLE IV – DELIVERY CONDITIONS 

1. The Users hereby agree to deliver or cause to be delivered to the Disposal System 

in accordance with the Plan of Operation substantially all (at least 95 percent per 

year) of the DSW which is generated or collected by or within or under the 

control of each of the Users from the effective date of this Agreement. Each of the 

Users will also use best efforts to enter into contractual agreements with each 

locality, generator and commercial hauler of DSW in their respective counties for 

their use of the Disposal System. 

2. Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement and the Plan of Operation, 

the Authority hereby agrees to receive and accept all DSW delivered to the 

Disposal System by each of the Users after the effective date of this Agreement 

and throughout the remaining term of this Agreement. 

3. The Authority shall provide one or more Transfer Stations to each of the Users for 

the disposal of DSW. The location of all Transfer Stations shall be specified in the 

Plan of Operation. The Authority shall have the right to designate a separate point 

or points of delivery for any grades or categories of DSW which in its opinion 

require special handling or methods of disposal. 

4. The Users hereby agree not to build or, to the extent of their legal authority, allow 

to be built any facilities that would compete with the Disposal System during the 

duration of the term of this Agreement. 

DRAFT 



USER AGREEMENT  
Page | 6  

 

 

ARTICLE V – CHARGES AND FEES FOR USE OF  

AUTHORITY DISPOSAL SYSTEM 

1. The Users agree to pay to the Authority rates, fees, and other charges as approved 

by the Authority’s Board of Directors in compliance with Va. Code Ann. §15.2-

5136 subject to approval of the Board of Supervisors of each User.  The Authority 

agrees to comply with § 15.2-5136 when fixing rates, fees, and other charges. .  

Each of the Users shall have the right to set the fees to be charged to the public at 

each transfer station in their respective county for the disposal of DSW.  

2. The Authority shall invoice each User for the Tipping Fees on a monthly basis 

(within ten (10) days after the end of the month). Such invoices will show the 

total tonnage received by the Authority attributable to the User during the billing 

period of all DSW. Such invoices shall be due and payable without offset within 

Thirty (30) days of the date of the invoice. 

3. The DSW delivered to the Disposal System will be weighed for the purpose of 

determining the actual tonnage received. Fractions of tons actually received shall 

be invoiced on an accumulated basis each month. In the event of malfunction of 

the Authority’s weighing scales or other measuring device, an estimate of the 

amount of DSW received will be computed based on the average amount received 

per vehicle, when dumping records for such vehicle for the six (6) months 

immediately preceding are available, or when such records are not available, will 

be computed based on the average amount received per vehicle of like size and/or 

compaction ratio. 

4. The Authority shall keep proper books and records in accordance with generally 

accepted accounting principles which shall be available for inspection by the User 

at all reasonable times.   

5. Any proposed amendment of rates, fees or other charges imposed by the 

Authority on the Users pursuant to this Agreement is subject to approval by the 

DRAFT 



USER AGREEMENT  
Page | 7  

Users after the Authority has provided adequate documentation to demonstrate 

that an increase or decrease is necessary under § 15.2-5136. 

 

ARTICLE VI – TITLE TO SOLID WASTE; LIABILITY FOR SOLID WASTE 

1. Title to all DSW delivered to the Disposal System by each of the Users shall pass 

to the Authority when recorded by the Authority’s weighing scales or other 

measuring devices at the Authority’s facilities, EXCEPT that title to Hazardous 

Waste and Non-Conforming Waste shall not vest or pass to the Authority, even if 

Hazardous Waste and Non-Conforming Waste is delivered to and unknowingly 

accepted by the Authority. Inoperability or unavailability of the Authority’s 

measuring devices shall not alter the transfer of title to DSW delivered to and 

accepted by the Authority.  

2. In the event that Hazardous Waste is inadvertently or unknowingly delivered to 

and/or accepted by the Authority, it is understood and agreed between the parties 

that liability for any environmental contamination, adverse effects, penalties or 

damages resulting from, and necessary costs of correction, may be imposed upon 

the Users by any regulatory bodies with adequate jurisdiction.   

ARTICLE VII – DEFAULT 

1. In the event of default, the non-defaulting party shall have the right, but not the 

obligation, to cure such default and to charge the defaulting party for the cost of 

curing said default, and to obtain reimbursement thereof. 

2. Upon the occurrence of a default by the Authority hereunder, any of the Users, 

after giving notice of such default to the Authority, may bring appropriate legal 

proceedings to require the Authority to perform its duties under the Act and this 

Agreement or to enjoin any acts in violation of the Act or this Agreement. 

However, prior to any of the Users  initiating legal action against the Authority, 

the User(s) must give the Authority written notice of the default and provide the 

Authority thirty (30) days to cure said default. 

  

DRAFT 



USER AGREEMENT  
Page | 8  

3. Upon the occurrence of a default by any User, the Authority, after giving notice of 

such default to all parties, may bring appropriate legal action to require the User 

to perform its duties under the Act and this Agreement or to enjoin any acts in 

violation of the Act or this Agreement.  However, prior to the Authority initiating 

legal action against a User, the Authority must give the User written notice of the 

default and provide the User thirty (30) days to cure said default. 

4. No remedy in this Agreement conferred upon or reserved to the parties is intended 

to be exclusive of any other remedy, and each remedy is cumulative and in 

addition to every other remedy given under this Agreement or now or hereafter 

existing as provided by law. 

ARTICLE VIII – NO PARTNERSHIP 

Nothing herein shall be construed to constitute a joint venture between the 

Authority and the Users or the formation of a partnership. 

ARTICLE IX – FORCE MAJEURE 

1. Failure of any party to perform hereunder, including failure of any User to deliver 

or cause to be delivered DSW, or inability of the Authority to accept DSW, by 

reason of Force Majeure (as defined in the Plan of Operation) shall not constitute 

a default or be cause for termination of this Agreement. However, the party so 

failing to perform shall immediately notify the other party of the failure, including 

reasons thereof, and shall make reasonable efforts to correct such failure to 

perform at the earliest possible date. 

2. If, by reason of Force Majeure, the Authority cannot accept DSW at the Transfer 

Station located within the User’s region, the Authority shall immediately provide 

for and notify the User of an alternate delivery points(s). 

3. Solely in the event that no facilities of the Authority are available for disposal of 

DSW the User shall have the right, but not the obligation, to dispose of or cause to 

be disposed of DSW at locations other than the Transfer Station located within the 

User’s region until the cause of the Authority’s inability to accept the User’s 

DSW is cured, but not thereafter. 

 

DRAFT 



USER AGREEMENT  
Page | 9  

ARTICLE X – EXTENT OF AGREEMENT 

This Agreement, together with the Plan of Operation, represents the entire 

agreement between the parties hereto and supersedes all prior negotiations, 

representations or agreements, either written or oral. This Agreement shall not be 

modified, altered or amended unless in writing and signed by the parties. 

ARTICLE XI – GENERAL 

1. In the event that any provisions of this Agreement shall be held to be invalid, the 

remaining provisions shall be valid and binding upon the parties. 

2. One or more waivers by either party hereto of performance of any obligation 

and/or covenant hereunder shall not be construed as a waiver of subsequent 

breach of any obligation and/or covenant. 

3. Neither the Users nor the Authority shall delegate or assign duties under this 

Agreement without the written consent of the other. 

4. The construction and performance of this Agreement shall be in accordance with 

the laws of the Commonwealth of Virginia.  In the event of a dispute between the 

Authority and a User, the venue for resolution of that dispute shall lie in the 

Circuit Court of the User.  In the event a dispute between the Authority and two 

or more Users occurs or a dispute occurs between or among Users, the Chief 

Judge of the 29th Judicial Circuit shall determine the venue and appoint a judge to 

hear the case.    

5. Any notices hereunder shall be in writing addressed to the party as set forth below 

or at such other address as may be designated in writing to the other parties 

hereto. 

6. In the event the Authority has an administrative fee surplus at the end of any 
fiscal year and at the end of audit of said fiscal year, such surplus amounts shall 
be divided equally among the three (3) member counties, based on a review and 
vote of the Authority Board.  

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be 
properly executed and attested by duly authorized officials as of this the   day of  
 , 2024.  
 

DRAFT 



USER AGREEMENT  
Page | 10  

 Cumberland Plateau Regional Waste Management Authority 

 By         (SEAL) 
  CPRWMA Chairman, Ron Peters 
  135 Highland Drive, Suite C 
  Lebanon, Virginia 24266 
  Telephone: (276) 883-5403 
 
 

ATTEST: 
 
       (SEAL) 
CPRWMA Secretary 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM ONLY: 
__________________________________(SEAL) 
R.J. Thornbury, Esq. Counsel for the CPRWMA  

  
COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA, 
AT LARGE, to wit: 
 

The foregoing contract was subscribed and acknowledged before me by Ron Peters, Chairman of the 
CPRWMA Board, ________________________, Secretary of the CPRWMA and R.J. Thornbury, Counsel 
for CPWRMA this the ____day of ________________2024 in __________________County, Va. 

 
                                                                               ___________________________________ 
                                                                         NOTARY PUBLIC 
My Commission expires: ________________.  
My Registration # is _________________.  

 

                                            

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DRAFT 



USER AGREEMENT  
Page | 11  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Dickenson County Board of Supervisors 

 
    By         (SEAL) 
     Shelby Willis, Chairman 
     P.O. Box 1098 
     Clintwood, Virginia 24228    
     Telephone: (276) 926-1676   
     Fax: (276) 926-1649 

 
ATTEST: 
 
         (SEAL) 
Larry Barton., County Administrator  
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
___________________________________________________(SEAL) 
William Sturgill, Esq. 
County Attorney of Dickenson County, Va.  

 
 
COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA, 
AT LARGE, to wit: 

The foregoing contract was subscribed and acknowledged before me by Shelby Willis, Chairman of the 
Dickenson County Board of Supervisors, Larry Barton, County Administrator the Dickenson County, Va. 
and William Sturgill, County Attorney of Dickenson County, Va., this the ____day of 
________________2024 in ________________ County, Va. 

                                                                               ___________________________________ 
                                                                         NOTARY PUBLIC 
My Commission expires: ________________.  
My Registration # is _________________.  
                                

   

DRAFT 



USER AGREEMENT  
Page | 12  

 

  Buchanan County Board of Supervisors 

 

                          By_________________________________________(SEAL) 
                                 Roger Rife, Chairman 
                                 P.O. Drawer 950  
                                 Grundy, Va. 24614 
                                 Telephone: 276-935-6503 
                                 Fax: 276-935-4479  
 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________________________(SEAL) 
Robert Craig Horn  
County Administrator 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
_______________________________________(SEAL) 
Lawrence L. Moise III, Esq.,   
County Attorney  
 
COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA, 
AT LARGE, to wit: 
 

The foregoing contract was subscribed and acknowledged before me by Roger Rife, Chairman of the 
Buchanan County Board of Supervisors, Robert Craig Horn, County Administrator and Lawrence L. 
Moise III, County Attorney this the ____day of ________________2024 in __________________ 
County, Va. 

                                                                            ___________________________________ 
                                                                         NOTARY PUBLIC 
My Commission expires: ________________.  
My Registration # is _________________.  
                                  

 

 

              

DRAFT 



USER AGREEMENT  
Page | 13  

 Russell County Board of Supervisors 

 

                             By_________________________________________(SEAL) 
                                    Steve Breeding, Chairman 
                                    137 Highland Drive  
                                    Lebanon, Va. 24266 
                                    Telephone: 276-889-8000 
                                    Fax: 276-889-8011  
 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________________________(SEAL) 
Lonzo Lester 
County Administrator 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
_______________________________________(SEAL) 
Terry Kilgore, Esq.,   
County Attorney  
 
COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA, 
AT LARGE, to wit: 
 

The foregoing contract was subscribed and acknowledged before me by Steve Breeding, Chairman of the 
Russell County Board of Supervisors, Lonzo Lester, County Administrator and Terry Kilgore, Esq. 
County Attorney, this the ____day of ________________2024 in ________________ County, Va. 

                                                                            ___________________________________ 
                                                                         NOTARY PUBLIC 
My Commission expires: ________________.  
My Registration # is _________________.  
 

 

DRAFT 



1 
 

CUMBERLAND PLATEAU REGIONAL WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 
MANPOWER SERVICE AGREEMENT 

THIS AGREEMENT made as of this ______ day of __________________, 2024, by and 

between Cumberland Plateau Regional Waste Management Authority (hereinafter referred to as 

the "Authority") and the County of Russell, Virginia, a political subdivision of the 

Commonwealth of Virginia, (hereinafter referred to as "County"). 

WHEREAS, the Authority, after causing the construction thereof, has agreed to operate 

and manage a transfer station in the County of Russell to ensure the availability of an economical 

and environmentally sound method to handle and dispose of solid waste generated in Russell 

County; and 

WHEREAS, the Authority desires to secure manpower services to operate the 

Authority's transfer station; and 

WHEREAS, the County has offered to provide said manpower services; and 

WHEREAS, the Authority agrees to retain County for manpower services in order to 

efficiently and economically operate the Authority's transfer station in Russell County; and 

WHEREAS, in reliance on this Agreement, the County will employ the certified 

personnel necessary to ensure County's performance hereunder and will provide a leachate 

truck for the purpose of pumping and transporting leachate from the transfer station to an 

approved disposal location.  

NOW, THEREFORE, FOR AND IN CONSIDERATION of the respective covenants 

herein contained, the parties have agreed as follows: 

REPRESENTATIONS AND CERTIFICATIONS 

Both parties hereto specifically represent and certify that each has (1) reviewed and 

DRAFT 



2 
 

understands the terms and conditions as stated herein; (2) that each has the requisite right, power 

and authority necessary for the execution hereof; and (3) that any and all requirements imposed 

by the Virginia Public Procurement Act have been satisfied. 

Both parties hereto, by the execution hereof, expressly and unequivocally agree, that 

County shall be considered as an Independent Contractor hereunder and that no liability 

resulting from any willful or negligent act or failure to act by County's employees shall be 

attributable to the Authority. The County specifically agrees unless otherwise prohibited by law, 

to fully indemnify and protect the Authority from any suit or claim arising out of any breach of 

this Agreement by the County. The Authority specifically agrees unless otherwise prohibited by 

law, to fully indemnify and protect the County from any suit or claim arising out of any breach 

of this Agreement by the Authority. 

AUTHORITY AND COUNTY OBLIGATIONS 

The Authority agrees to be responsible for costs associated with the operation of the 

transfer station except those cleaning and personal hygiene items, wages, taxes, workmen's 

compensation insurance, liability insurance and other fringe benefits paid to, or for the benefit 

of, the workers employed by the County assigned to the Authority's transfer station. 

QUALITY OF SERVICE ON PERSONNEL/PERFORMANCE EVALUATION 

The Authority shall maintain the Transfer Station open for performance of this 

Agreement between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 4:00 p.m., Monday through Friday, excluding 

observed holidays as provided for in the User Agreement executed between the Authority and the 

County. If the County wishes to open additional hours, it shall do so at its own manpower 

expense. The actual operating hours may be altered, provided both parties agree to changes in 

the normal posted hours.    

DRAFT 



3 
 

SCOPE OF SERVICE CONTRACTOR OBLIGATIONS 

The County shall be responsible for securing necessary certification and approvals from 

relevant federal, state and local governmental agencies having jurisdiction over its personnel; 

provided however, the Authority shall retain responsibility for obtaining all permits and 

approvals relating to the general operation of the Transfer Station. During the term hereof, the 

County shall provide the personnel certified by the Virginia Department of Professional and 

Occupational Regulations for the daily operation of the Transfer Station, all in compliance and 

certified with applicable laws and regulations. Transfer Station personnel will report directly to 

the County Administrator/Director of Solid Waste and the Authority’s Director of Waste 

Services.  Job descriptions and responsibilities will be determined by the Authority and the 

County Administrator. A copy is on file at the Authority office located at 135 Highland Drive, 

Lebanon, VA. The County shall provide a leachate truck for the purpose of pumping and 

transporting leachate from the transfer station to an approved disposal location and County will 

supply fuel, tags and insurance for this leachate truck. The Authority agrees to provide 

uniforms/approved boots for the personnel assigned to the transfer station and employees shall be 

required to wear uniforms daily. 

TERM OF CONTRACT 

This Agreement shall be effective as of the 5th day of April, 2024. The initial term of this 

Agreement shall be one (1) year commencing on the 5th day of April, 2024.   The term of this 

Agreement shall extend for an additional one-year, upon the same terms and conditions as 

herein, unless either party elects to cancel this Agreement by three (3) months written notice to 

the other party prior to the end of this term or of any hold over term. 

 

DRAFT 



4 
 

NONDISCRIMINATION 

The County shall not discriminate against any person because of race, sex, age, creed, 

color, religion, natural origin or handicap. 

INSURANCE 

The County or its sub-contractor shall provide and maintain during active operations 

hereunder, Workers' Compensation Insurance which shall meet the requirement of the 

Commonwealth of Virginia. 

The County or its sub-contractor shall provide and maintain during active operations 

hereunder Public Liability Insurance, to protect against all claims arising out of the County's 

negligent or willful acts or omissions in the course of its operations that result in bodily injury, 

death or property damage. 

The County or its sub-contractor shall upon the full execution of this Agreement and 

thereafter upon request, furnish Authority evidence that the insurance relative to its said acts or 

omissions is in force, provided, however, any certificate of insurance shall in no way alter or 

amend such insurance coverage to increase the level or extent expressly set forth herein. 

The limits of liability of all insurance required herein not expressly set forth hereinabove 

shall be as set forth in Exhibit "A", which is attached hereto and made a part hereof. 

COVID-19, PANDEMIC AND EPIDEMIC POLICY 

The parties agree to adopt the Covid-19, Pandemic and Epidemic Policy (Policy) attached 

hereto and incorporated by reference herein as Exhibit “B” for transfer station employees.  The  

Policy is in effort to reduce workplace hazards by the prevention and mitigation of the spread of 

Covid-19 or other illness identified as a pandemic or epidemic, in accordance to Virginia 

Department of Labor  and Industry guidelines.  

DRAFT 



5 
 

DEFAULT  

Except as otherwise provided herein, if either party defaults in the performance of any of 

the warranties, covenants or conditions contained herein for thirty (30) days after the other party 

has given the defaulting party written notice of such default and the party defaulting shall not 

have commenced to cure such default within said period and to pursue diligently the completion 

thereof, the other party may: (i) terminate this Agreement as of any date at least thirty (30) days 

after the last day of the thirty (30) day period; (ii) cure the default at the expense of the 

defaulting party and (iii) have recourse to any other right or remedy to which it may be entitled 

by law or equity, including, but not limited to, the right for all damage or loss suffered as a result 

of such default and termination. In the event either party waives default by the other party, such 

waiver shall not be construed or determined to be a continuing waiver of the same or any 

subsequent default. In the event that in the exercise of due diligence during the aforesaid thirty 

(30) day period such cure cannot reasonably be effected or completed, such cure period shall be 

extended to include such additional time as is reasonably necessary to effect or complete such 

cure provided the defaulting party exercises continuous diligent efforts to cure such default 

during such extended period. 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 

Neither party shall assign or transfer, or permit the assignment or transfer of this 

Agreement or the rights hereunder without the prior written consent of the other party. The 

Authority expressly reserves the power to demand Contractor to provide qualified personnel at 

the transfer station. In the event that said employees are not performing to the Authority's needs 

or specifications, the County will immediately cure said deficiency by supplying alternative 

qualified personnel. The Contractor will as outlined in this agreement supply at least (3) certified 

DRAFT 



6 
 

operators as approved by the Virginia Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation 

Board during daily operations.            

This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement and understanding between the parties 

hereto, and it shall not be considered modified, altered, changed, amended or revoked unless in 

writing and signed by the parties hereto. 

From and after the date of this Agreement, the County's performance hereunder may be 

suspended, and its obligations hereunder excused in the event and during the period that such 

performance if prevented by a cause or causes beyond the reasonable control of the County. Such 

causes may include, by way of example and not limitations, acts of God, acts of war, riot, fire, 

explosion, accident, flood or sabotage, lack of adequate fuel, power or raw materials, judicial, 

administrative or governmental laws, regulations, requirements, rules, orders or actions; 

injunctions or restraining orders; the failure of any governmental body to issue or grant, or the 

suspension or revocation or modification of any license, permit or other authorization necessary 

for the services envisioned by the Agreement; national defense requirements; labor strike, lockout 

or injunction. 

If any term, clause or provision of this Agreement or the application thereof to any person 

or circumstances shall, to any extent be illegal, invalid or unenforceable under present or future 

laws effective during the term hereof, then it is the intention of the parties hereto that the 

remainder of this Agreement, or the application of such term, clause or provision to persons or 

circumstances other than those to which it is held illegal, invalid or unenforceable, shall not be 

affected thereby, and it is also the intention of the parties hereto that in lieu of each term, clause 

or provision that is illegal, invalid or unenforceable term, clause or provision as may be possible 

to effect the expressed intent of the parties and be legal, valid and enforceable. 

DRAFT 



7 
 

This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the 

Commonwealth of Virginia and any disputes hereunder shall be resolved by the Circuit Court of 

Russell County, Virginia. 

The covenants, terms, conditions and provisions of this Agreement shall extend to and be 

binding upon the successors and assigns of the respective parties. 

All notices or other communications to be given hereunder shall be in writing and shall be 

deemed given when mailed by registered or certified United States mail, addressed to the 

Cumberland Plateau Regional Waste Management Authority, 135 Highland Drive Suite C, 

Lebanon, VA 24266, or addressed to Russell County, 137 Highland Drive, Lebanon, VA 24266. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto cause their presence to be signed and sealed 

this _______ day of ________________________, 2024, written by their respective officers 

pursuant to authorizations contained in duly adopted resolutions or ordinances, as the case may 

be. 

 

 
By:

CUMBERLAND PLATEAU REGIONAL 
WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 
 
 
 
Chairman of the Authority 

 

 

 

DRAFT 



8 
 

COUNTY OF RUSSELL BOARD OF 
SUPERVISORS 

 

By: ________________________________________ 
      Chairman of the Russell County 
       Board of Supervisors  
        
 
By: _____________________________________ 
      County Administrator 

APPROVED AS TO FORM 
 
 
 
____________________________________________ 
Deputy County Attorney for Russell County

DRAFT 



9 
 

STATE OF VIRGINIA, 
AT LARGE, to-wit: 
 

Subscribed and acknowledged to before me by Chairman of Cumberland Plateau 

Regional Waste Management Authority this the ____________day of ____________, 2024. 

 My Commission expires: __________________________. 

 My Registration number:__________________________. 

 
______________________ 
NOTARY PUBLIC 

STATE OF VIRGINIA, 
AT LARGE, to-wit: 

 Subscribed and acknowledged to before me by the Chairman of the Russell County 

Board of Supervisors this the _____________ day of _____________, 2024.  

 My Commission expires: __________________________. 

 My Registration number:__________________________. 
 

       ________________________ 
       NOTARY PUBLIC 
STATE OF VIRGINIA, 
AT LARGE, to-wit: 
 
  Subscribed and acknowledged to before me by the County Administrator 

for Russell County, Virginia, this the __________day of,____________        , 2024. 

 My Commission expires:__________________________. 
 
 My Registration number:__________________________. 
 

       __________________________ 
       NOTARY PUBLIC 
STATE OF VIRGINIA, 
AT LARGE, to-wit: 
 
  Subscribed and acknowledged to before me by the Deputy County Attorney 

for Russell County, Virginia, this __________day of     , 2024.  

 My Commission expires:__________________________. 
 
 My Registration number:__________________________. 
 
      ______________________________ 
       NOTARY PUBLIC 

DRAFT 



10 
 

EXHIBIT A 

INSURANCE COVERAGE RIDER 

COVERAGES Workmen's 

Compensation Employer's 

Liability 

Excess Umbrella Liability 

LIMITS OF LIABILITY 

Statutory 

$100,000 per accident $100,000 
per employee's disease $500,000 
policy limit on disease 

$1,000,000 each occurrence 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DRAFT 



11 
 

 
EXHIBIT B 

 
CUMBERLAND PLATEAU REGIONAL WASTE MANAGEMENT 

AUTHORITY 
 

Transfer Staff COVID-19, Pandemic and Epidemic Policy 
 

Reason for policy: 
 
 Due to declining infection rates, increases in vaccination and natural 
immunity within the general population, the Virginia Safety and Health Codes Board 
revoked Virginia's Covid-19 workplace safety standards effective March 23, 2022. 
Therefore, employers no longer need to comply with the requirements of the 
previous Emergency Temporary Standard for Infectious Disease Prevention but are 
still required to provide a healthy workplace free from hazards. The Cumberland 
Plateau Regional Waste Management Authority (the "Authority") seeks to comply 
with this requirement and the newly created Virginia Safety and Health Code 
Guidelines for Covid-19 as well as establish a policy to address other diseases 
identified by the Center for Disease Control (“CDC”) as a pandemic or an epidemic 
within the region. 
 
Definitions and Terms: 
 
 Terms as used in this policy have the same meaning as defined under the 
"Guidance to Employers to Mitigate the Risk of COVID-19 to Workers", unless the 
context clearly indicates otherwise. Said definitions are readily available on the 
Virginia Department of Labor and Industry website at 
https://www.doli.virginia.gov/vosh-programs-coronavirus-covid-19-resources/ and 
https://www.doli.virginia.gov/wp-content/uploads/2022/06/DOLI-Guidance-for-
Employers-to-Mitigate-the-Risk-of-COVID-19-to-Workers-03.01.2022_FINAL.pdf. 
 
Policy Statement: 
 
 The Authority desires to prevent and mitigate the spread of SARS-CoV-2 
which causes COVID-19, as well as other diseases identified as a pandemic or an 
epidemic by the Virginia Department of Health (VDH), to employees of member 
counties who work at Authority transfer stations.  Employers and Employees shall 
take measures pursuant to the most recent guidance as issued by the Virginia 
Department of Labor and Industry (VDOLI), VDH and CDC guidelines, and such 
requirements as may be federally mandated to prevent spread.  
 
A. COVID-19 

 
1. Employee Self-Assessment and Screening: 

 

DRAFT 



12 
 

 a. COVID-19 
 
  i. Self-assessment 
     Employees who experience signs and symptoms of COVID-19, are 
encouraged to stay home and seek advise on testing and treatment from their 
physician 
 
  ii. Positive Test Result 
     Employees who test positive for COVID-19 should stay home and shall 
notify the Authority Executive Director and their respective member county 
administrator of the positive test. Executive Director and/or the member county 
administrator may request test results or written confirmation from a healthcare 
provider be forwarded to the Executive Director and/or the member county 
administrator for verification and which shall remain confidential employee 
information.  The Executive director is responsible for any reporting requirements to 
the Virginia Department of Health or other governmental entity as may be mandated 
at that time.   
 
    Any subcontractor, contract employee or temporary employee is required 
to report a positive SARS-CoV-2 test to the Executive Director and their respective 
member county administrator, if they were present at the work site within the 
previous 24 hours from the date of the positive test. 
 
    Employees, subcontractors, contract employees or temporary employees 
who test positive or who are suspected to be infected with SARS-CoV-2 virus 
should return to work in accordance with section 4 titled "Return to Work" herein. If 
appropriate, such employee may engage in teleworking or other form of work 
isolation that would not potentially expose other employees to the virus. 
 
    Any employee who reports COVID-19 symptoms upon arrival at work 
should return home to self-isolate and/or seek healthcare as appropriate for his or her 
circumstance.   The employee should isolate from other employees and wear a face 
mask or covering while at the workplace. 
 

 
2. Sick Leave and Staggered Shifts 
 

a. Sick Leave 
 

 All prior sick leave policies shall remain in effect in accordance with the 
employee’s respective member county personnel policy.  Additional sick leave may 
apply if mandated through state or federal laws or executive orders. 
 
 b. Staggered Shifts 
 When feasible and necessary to limit contact, staggered shifts may be 
developed and utilized. 
 

DRAFT 



13 
 

3. Work Procedures to Prevent Infectious Spread 
 
 Given the nature of job tasks at transfer stations, engineering and 
administrative controls are not feasible. Therefore, employees will be provided 
appropriate Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) and are encouraged, but not 
required, to get the COVID-19 vaccine/booster. In addition, the work site shall 
observe distancing or occupancy limits in any applicable Virginia Executive Order. 
Areas at the worksite where known or suspected to be infected employees or other 
persons accessed or worked shall be cleaned and disinfected prior to allowing 
employees access to the areas. All common areas to include bathrooms, frequently 
touched surfaces, and doors shall be cleaned and disinfected.  

. 
4. Return to Work 
 
 Employees and Employers shall follow the most recent guidelines for return 
to the workplace. For Covid-19, the most recent may be accessed on the CDC 
website at https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/your-health/isolation.html.  
 
5. Notifying Employees and Employers of Workplace Exposures 
 
 When an employee, subcontractor, contract employee or temporary employee 
who was present at the work site within the previous 24 hours from the date of a 
positive test, the Executive Director in conjunction with the member county 
administrator shall notify the following persons or entities, while maintaining 
confidentiality of the identity of the infected employee in accordance with the 
American Disabilities Act (ADA): 
 

1. Other employees who may have been exposed, within 24 hours of 
discovery of the employees’ possible exposure; 

2. Employers whose employees were present at the work site during the 
same time period, within 24 hours of discovery of the employee's 
possible exposure; 

3. Building or facility owner, if applicable, within 24 hours of discovery of 
the employee's possible exposure; 

4. The Virginia Occupational Safety and Health Administration as required 
by regulations part 1904 (COVID-19 infections and deaths). 

 
 The Executive Director may voluntarily report Covid-19 outbreaks to the 
VDH within 24 hours of the discovery of three or more employees present at the 
place of employment within a 14-day period testing positive for SARS-CoV-2 virus 
during that 14-day time period.  The Executive Director shall follow reporting 
mandates as may be updated or implemented.  

 
B. Diseases Other than Covid-19 Classified as a Pandemic or an Epidemic. 
 
   1. Employer and Employee shall follow the most recent state and federal 
mandates or guidelines, including those in an executive order for a pandemic or 

DRAFT 



14 
 

epidemic illness other than Covid-19, pertaining to screening, testing, return to work 
and workplace safety.  Employer and Employee shall default to applicable guidelines 
under VOSH, VDH and CDC relating to workplace safety, PPE, distancing, 
masking, return to work, reporting, screening, training, sick leave and other aspects 
related to the illness and workplace.  Any policy mandated under federal or state law 
will be developed into a written policy, as may be required.  
 

2.  The Executive Director will identify and document sources of exposure to 
workers to include: 1) who is at risk; 2) how it can be spread; and 3) the areas of 
greatest exposure.   
 

3. Employer shall implement an infection control plan that includes: 
 
  a. Cleaning procedures and appropriate Environmental Protection 
Agency (EPA) disinfectants, such procedures and disinfectant use as recommended 
by CDC or VOSH.   
  b. Encourages employees to wash hands frequently.   
 

4. Employer shall promptly identify and isolate employees who are sick and 
symptomatic for the disease. 

 
a. As deemed appropriate by Employer or mandated, Employer will 

pre-screen for the illness.  
b. Designate a person to respond to a potentially infected individual, 

using necessary PPE in so responding.   
c. Attempt to isolate the sick employee from other employees.  

 
5. Workplace Protections: 

 
a. Employer will encourage employees who are positive for the illness 

to stay home, returning to work pursuant to guidelines issued by the 
CDC.   

b. Employer shall encourage social distancing where feasible. 
   

6. Sick Leave 
 

a. All prior sick leave policies shall remain in effect in accordance with the 
employee’s respective member county personnel policy.  Additional sick leave may 
apply if mandated through state or federal laws or executive orders. 
 
 b. Staggered Shifts 
 When feasible and necessary to limit contact, staggered shifts may be 
developed and utilized. 
  

7. Return to Work 
  

DRAFT 



15 
 

Employee shall follow the most recent guidelines issued by the CDC for return to the 
workplace. 

 
8. Notifying Employees and Employers of Workplace Exposures and 

Reporting. 
 
 When an employee, subcontractor, contract employee or temporary employee 
who was present at the work site within the previous 24 hours from the date of a 
positive test, the Executive Director in conjunction with the member county 
administrator shall notify the following persons or entities, while maintaining 
confidentiality of the identity of the infected employee in accordance with the 
American Disabilities Act (ADA): 
 

1. Other employees who may have been exposed within a reasonable time 
of employee’s possible exposure; 

2. Employers whose employees were present at the work site during the 
same time period, within 24 hours of discovery of the employee's 
possible exposure; 

3. Building or facility owner, if applicable, within 24 hours of discovery of 
the employee's possible exposure; 

4. The Virginia Occupational Safety and Health Administration as required 
by regulations part 1904. 

 
 The Executive Director shall report outbreaks or deaths as may be required 
under any state or federal law and in compliance with VOSH mandates, as such are 
amended or repealed from time to time. 
 
C. Anti-discrimination 

 
No person shall be discharged or in any way discriminate against an 

employee because the employee has exercised rights under the safety and health 
provisions of this policy, Title 40.1 of the Code of Virginia, and the mandatory 
Virginia Occupational Safety and Health Administration (VOSH) standards for: PPE 
(part 1910, subpart I (e.g., 1910.132 and 133)), respiratory protection (1910.134), 
sanitation (1910.141), protection from blood borne pathogens (1910.1030), 
employee access to medical and exposure records (1910.1020), and requirements in 
the VOSH Administrative Regulations Manual. 

 
No person shall be discharged or in any way discriminate against an 

employee who voluntarily provides and wears the employees’ own PPE, including, 
but not limited to, a respirator, face shield, or gloves, or face covering if such 
equipment is not provided by the employer, provided that the PPE does not create a 
greater hazard to the employee or create a serious hazard for other employees. 

 
  No person shall discharge or in any way discriminate against an employee 

who raises a reasonable concern about infection control related to the SARS-CoV-2 
virus and COVID-19 or other disease that is classified as an epidemic or pandemic to 

DRAFT 



16 
 

the employer, the employer’s agent, other employees, a government agency, or to the 
public such as through print, online, social, or other media. 

 
Nothing in this policy shall limit an employee from refusing to do work or 

enter a location that the employee feels is unsafe. Employee shall not be disciplined 
for refusing to enter a location the employee feels is unsafe unless determined 
reasonable and necessary under the circumstances. 
 
D. Training  
  
 All employees are encouraged to read this policy and the procedures herein. 
Employees are encouraged to maintain good sanitary work habits such as frequent 
hand washing and to help facilitate mitigating the spread of COVID-19 or other 
epidemic or pandemic disease through maintaining a healthy work environment.  
Employer shall provide training as mandated by state and federal law applicable to 
workplace safety. 
 
E. Amendment  
 
 This policy may be amended from time to time, replaced or repealed. 
 
Related Information: 
 

1. https://www.doli.virginia.gov/wp-content/uploads/2022/07/DOLI-Guidance-
for-Employers-to-Mitigate-the-Risk-of-COVID-19-to-Workers-
07.05.2022.pdf 

2. https://www.doli.virginia.gov/vosh-programs-coronavirus-covid-19-
resources/ 

3. https://www.vdh.virginia.gov/coronavirus/ 
4. https://www.vdh.virginia.gov/coronavirus/media-and-communication-

resources/resources-and-support/ 
5. https://www.doli.virginia.gov/wp-content/uploads/2020/03/Coronavirus-

Hazard-Alert.pdf 
 

 
   

           

 

 

DRAFT 

https://www.doli.virginia.gov/vosh-programs-coronavirus-covid-19-resources/
https://www.doli.virginia.gov/vosh-programs-coronavirus-covid-19-resources/
https://www.vdh.virginia.gov/coronavirus/
https://www.vdh.virginia.gov/coronavirus/media-and-communication-resources/resources-and-support/
https://www.vdh.virginia.gov/coronavirus/media-and-communication-resources/resources-and-support/
https://www.doli.virginia.gov/wp-content/uploads/2020/03/Coronavirus-Hazard-Alert.pdf
https://www.doli.virginia.gov/wp-content/uploads/2020/03/Coronavirus-Hazard-Alert.pdf


 

 1 

RUSSELL COUNTY PARKS  
ORDINANCE 

 
At a regular meeting of the Russell County Board of Supervisors held in the Russell 

County Government Center, Lebanon, Virginia, on the 8th day of April 2024. 
 

Present           

 Vote 

Steve Breeding, Chairman  
David Eaton, Vice Chairman 
Andrew Hensley 
Lou Ann Wallace 
Tara Dye 
Rebecca Dye 
Nate Kiser 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 

 On motion of _____________, seconded by _______________, which carried ______, 
the following ordinance was adopted: 

 
1.  Definitions.  The following terms, unless otherwise expressly defined, shall have the meaning given 
herein. 

 
(a) “Camping Unit,” shall mean a tent, sleeping bag, tent trailer, travel trailer, camping trailer, pick-up 

camper, RV motor home, whether motor driven or designed to be attached to or drawn by a vehicle. 
(b) “Campground,” refers to all designated campgrounds under the jurisdiction of the Russell County 

Board of Supervisors. 
(c) “County,” refers to the Russell County Board of Supervisors. 
(d) “Facilities,” refers to all community centers under the jurisdiction of the Commission or the Russell 

County Board of Supervisors. 
(e) “Motor Vehicle,” means any wheeled conveyance, whether motor powered.  The term shall include 

any trailer in two of any size, kind, or description. 
(f) “Owner,” means any person, firm, association, partnership, or corporation owning, leasing,  

operating, or having the exclusive use of a vehicle, animal, or any other property under a lease or 
otherwise. 

(g) “Park,” shall include all designated public parks, including athletic fields, natural areas and  
historical sites under the jurisdiction of the Russell County Board of Supervisors. 

(h) “Permits,” means any written license issued by or under authority of the Board of Supervisors 
permitting the performance of a specified act or acts. 

(i) “Person,” means any natural person, corporation, company, association, organization, firm or  
partnership. 

(j) “Regulation,” shall include any regulation duly adopted by the Russell County Board of  
Supervisors pursuant to the powers contained in Virginia Code Section 15.2. 

 
2.  Construction of Ordinance.   Provisions of these regulations shall be construed as follows: 

(a) No provision of this ordinance shall make unlawful any act necessarily performed by any law 
enforcement officer, employee of the County, or agent of the County in the necessary and proper 
execution of their duties; 

DRAFT 



 

 2 

(b) Any act prohibited by these regulations, provided it is not otherwise prohibited by law or local 
ordinance, shall be lawful if performed under, by virtue of and strictly within the provision of a 
permit and to the extent authorized; and  
(c) These regulations are in addition to and supplement the Virginia Game, Inland Fish and Boat 
Laws and those regulations that are incorporated and made a part thereof; 
 

3.  Jurisdiction.  These regulations shall be effective within and upon all parks, campgrounds, and facilities 
in Russell County that are under the jurisdiction of the County. 
 

PROHIBITED CONDUCT 
 
4.  Flowers, Plants, Minerals, etc.  No person shall remove, destroy, or damage in any manner any tree, 
flower, fern, shrub, rock or plant, historical artifact, or mineral in any park.  Nor shall any person attach any 
rope, wire or other contrivance to any tree or plant.  A person shall not dig in or otherwise disturb grassy 
areas or otherwise impair the natural beauty or usefulness of any park. 
 
5.  Buildings, Signs, Structures, etc.  No person shall in any manner deface, destroy or tamper with any part 
of any park or facility, nor any building, sign, equipment, bridges, tables, benches, fireplaces, railings, 
paving or paving material, water lines or other public utilities or parts or appurtenances thereof, signs, 
notices, boundary markers, or other structures or equipment, County facilities or park property or 
appurtenances whatsoever, either real or personal. 
 
6.   Disposal of Refuse, Garbage, etc.   No person shall discharge, deposit in any part of any park or facility 
or body of water in or adjacent to any park any garbage, sewage, waste, or any other offensive material, 
except in proper trash receptacles where provided. 
 
7.  Pollution of Waters.  No person shall bathe dogs or other animals, wash vehicles or clothing in the 
streams, or other waters of any park, or throw, discharge or otherwise cause to be placed into streams, or 
other waters of the park or in any storm sewer or drain flowing into said waters, any substance, matter or 
thing, liquid or solid, which may or shall result in the pollution of said waters. 
 
8.  Disorderly Conduct.  No person shall disobey a lawful order of a park supervisor or other duly authorized 
officer or agent of the County or Commission.  No person may commit a nuisance, nor use abusive, profane, 
or insulting language, nor unreasonably disturb or annoy others, nor do any act tending to or amounting to 
a breach of the peace in any park or facility. 
 
9.  Gambling.   Gambling in any park is prohibited. 
 
10.  Prohibited Substances.  No person shall have in their possession any illegal substances or be under the 
influence of intoxicants while in the confines of any park or facility.  Anyone found in violation will be 
removed from the park or facility and are subject to arrest. 
 
11.  Bathing.   No person shall swim in any waters in any park. 
 
12. Firearms.  No person shall possess a slingshot, bow and arrow, dart device, or other device designated 
for high-speed missile projection in a park or facility.  Provided, no person except law enforcement officers 
or those persons in possession of a concealed weapons permit valid in the Commonwealth of Virginia may 
carry or possess firearms in a park or facility.  No person shall discharge a firearm within the confines of a 
park or facility unless in an act of self-defense or unless otherwise authorized as a law enforcement officer. 
  

DRAFT 



 

 3 

13.  Explosives.  No person shall bring into or possess in any park or facility any explosive or explosive 
substance. 
 
14.  Fires, Lighted Cigarettes, etc.  No person shall kindle, maintain, or use fire other than in places provided 
or designated for such purposes or otherwise by special permit.  Any fire shall be continuously under the 
care and direction of a competent person over sixteen years of age from the time it is kindled until it is 
extinguished. No person within the confine of any park shall throw away or discard any lighted match, 
cigarette, cigar, or other burning object.  Any lighted match, cigarette, cigar, or other burning object must 
be entirely extinguished before being properly disposed of. 
 
15.  Smoking.  No person shall smoke in any park or facility where smoking is prohibited as indicated by 
sign.  No smoking is allowed when walking nature trails.  Smoking may be forbidden by the County or 
Commission in any part of any park or facility when it is deemed that the fire hazard makes such action 
advisable. 
 
16.  Hunting.  No person shall hunt, pursue, trap, shoot, injure, kill, or molest in any way any bird or 
animal within the confines of a park, nor shall any person possess any wild bird or animal within a park.   
Shooting into a park from beyond park boundaries is prohibited. 
 
17.  Fishing.  Fishing is permitted in designated areas of parks.  All persons fishing must have a State 
Fishing License as required by law and comply with all applicable state laws and regulations.  No 
commercial fishing is allowed. 
 
18.  Animals at Large.  No person shall cause or permit any animal owned by him, in his custody or under 
his control, except an animal restrained by a leash not exceeding six feet in length, to enter any park or 
campground, and any such animal may be seized and disposed of as provided by law. 
 
19.  Model Rockets and Airplanes.  No person shall engage in the flying of powered model rockets or 
airplanes in any park. 
 
20.  Aviation.  No person shall voluntarily bring, land or cause to descend or alight within or upon any 
park, any airplane, flying machine, balloon, parachute, or other apparatus for aviation except under permit 
or by forced landing in the event of an emergency.     
 

TRAFFIC AND PARKING 
 

21.  Vehicles Use.  No person shall drive a motor vehicle in any park or at any facility within or upon a 
safety zone, walk, bicycle path, nature trail, fire truck trail, service road or any park not designated for, or 
customarily used by motor vehicles, except properly authorized individuals engaged in fire control, park 
maintenance or other necessary park-related activities. 
 
22.  Parking.   

(a)  No owner or driver shall cause or permit a vehicle to stand anywhere in any park or at any 
facility outside of designated parking spaces, except at reasonable times to receive or discharge 
passengers.  Parking shall be in accordance with the posted directions to the parking area and/or 
with the instruction of any attendant who may be present. 
(b)  No owner or driver shall cause or permit a vehicle to stand in any space designated for use by 
the handicapped in any park or at any facility unless the vehicle displays a license plate or decal 
issued by The Commissioner of Motor Vehicles of Virginia, or a similar identification issued by 
similar authority in some other state or District of Columbia. 

 

DRAFT 



 

 4 

23.  Obstructing Traffic.  No person shall cause or permit a vehicle to obstruct traffic in a park. 
 
24.  Speed Limit.  The speed limit on any park road is no more than fifteen miles per hour. 
 
25.  Excessive Loads.  No person shall operate any excessively loaded vehicle anywhere in any park.  The 
determination of whether a load is excessive will be made by a park official based upon the load and the 
condition of the road. 
 

HOURS OF ACCESS 
 

26.  Old Russell County Courthouse.  No person is permitted on the premises of the Old Russell County 
Courthouse from sunset until dawn of the following day unless by special permit issued by the County. 
 
27.  Parks.  Normal operating hours of parks are from dawn until 10:00 pm excluding the county’s 
campgrounds.  All events should be concluded by this time unless arrangements are made in advance with 
the Commission.  No person is permitted in the confines of any park or facility after normal operating hours 
unless as otherwise authorized by the County. 
 
28.  Closed Areas. No person shall enter or use an area posted in a park or facility as “Closed to the 
Public” unless otherwise authorized by the County. 
 

GROUP USAGE 
 
29.  Provisions for Use of Any Park or Facility by Groups of Five or More.  The following provisions apply 
to use of any County Park or facility by groups of five or more: 

 
(a)   Any individual or organization sponsoring an event must provide sufficient adult supervision 
to maintain order and safety of all participants, be responsible for any loss or damage to the property 
and provide sufficient liability insurance coverage as required by the Commonwealth of Virginia.  
The Commission shall be a named insured on such liability insurance coverage. 
 
(b)  An individual must be designated as a user group’s representative and will accept all liability 
for personal injuries or damage resulting from the use of the facility or park. 
 

30.  Provisions Applying Exclusively to Use of Parks by Groups of Five or More.   The following provisions 
apply to the use of any County Park by groups of five or more: 

 
(a) A Facility Use Application must be submitted for approval to the County. 
 
(b) A damage deposit of $50 must be provided to the County prior to the event; said deposit to be 
returned or released by the County within ten days of the event, offset by the cost of any cleaning 
or damages caused by the respective group’s use of the park. 
 
(c) No cleaning or damage deposit shall be required for use of a park by any community welfare, 
charitable, educational, or faith-based group or any group with an agreement with the County for 
such group to provide maintenance and upkeep of such park.   

 
31.  Facilities Other than Parks.  No fee or damage deposit shall be required for use of any facility other 
than parks. 
 
 

DRAFT 



 

 5 

ENFORCEMENT AND PENALTIES 
 

32.  Enforcement.  The County shall, in connection with their duties imposed by law, diligently enforce 
the provisions of this Ordinance.  The County shall have the authority to eject from a park or facility any 
person acting in violation of this Ordinance. 
 
33. Penalties.  It shall be unlawful and constitute a misdemeanor for any person to violate any of the 
provisions of the Russell County Park Rules, as promulgated under the authority of Virginia Code Section 
15.2.  Each day any person who continues to act in violation of any of the rules shall constitute a separate 
offense.  Every person convicted of a misdemeanor for violation of any of the rules shall be punished by a 
fine of not less than fifty dollars nor more than five hundred dollars and the trial of all violations of this 
ordinance shall be enforced by proceedings before the Judge of the Russell County District Court, in the 
manner and with like rights of appeal as is provided in misdemeanor cases; and the Sheriff and all 
deputies, Virginia Game Warden, and all police officers of Russell county are hereby authorized to issue 
summons in writing to the violators of this ordinance to appear before said Court.  All fines collected 
from any person for violating any portion of this ordinance, upon conviction thereof, shall be credited to 
the general revenue funds of the County of Russell and deposited by the Treasurer or Russell County in 
the same manner as provided for other monies. 
 
34.  Savings Provision.  If any section, phrase, or part of this ordinance should for any reason be held 
invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the remainder of this ordinance; 
and every remaining section, phrase or part thereof shall continue in full force and effect. 
 
This ordinance shall become effective _____________________, 2024. 

  Adopted this _____ day of ______________, 2024. 

      ______________________________________ 
      STEVE BREEDING, CHAIRMAN 
      Russell County Board of Supervisors 
 
Attest: ______________________ 
           Clerk DRAFT 



 1 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
COUNTY OF RUSSELL 
LEBANON, VIRGINIA 

 
Ordinance 

 
At a regular meeting of the Russell County Board of Supervisors held in the Russell 

County Government Center, Lebanon, Virginia, on the 5th day of November 2015. 
 

Present           

 Vote 

Jon Bowerbank, Chairman  
Joseph Puckett, Vice Chairman 
Bob Gibson 
Ernest “Shy” Kennedy 
Freddie Arrington 
Danny L. Brown 
Rebecca Dye 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 

 On motion of _____________, seconded by _______________, which carried ______, 
the following ordinance was adopted: 

 
 

RUSSELL COUNTY PARKS  
ORDINANCE 

 
 
1.  Definitions.  The following terms, unless otherwise expressly defined, shall have the meaning given 
herein. 

 
 
(a) “Camping Unit,” shall mean a tent, sleeping bag, etc., and shall not mean tent trailer, travel trailer, 

camping trailer, pick-up camper, motor home or any other type of temporary living quarters or shelter, 
whether motor driven or designed to be attached to or drawn by a vehicle. 

(b) “Commission,” refers to the Russell County Recreation and Park Commission. 
(c) “County,” refers to the Russell County Board of Supervisors. 
(d) “Facilities,” refers to all community centers under the jurisdiction of the Commission or the Russell 

County Board of Supervisors. 
(e) “Motor Vehicle,” means any wheeled conveyance, whether motor powered, or animal drawn. 

The term shall include any trailer in two of any size, kind, or description. 
(f) “Owner,” means any person, firm, association, partnership, or corporation owning, leasing,  

operating, or having the exclusive use of a vehicle, animal, or any other property under a lease or 
otherwise. 

(g) “Park,” shall include all designated public parks, including athletic fields, natural areas and  
historical sites under the jurisdiction of the Russell County Board of Supervisors. 

(h) “Permits,” means any written license issued by or under authority of the Board of Supervisors  
or the Russell County Recreation and Park Commission, permitting the performance of a specified act 

DRAFT 



 2 

or acts. 
(i) “Person,” means any natural person, corporation, company, association, organization, firm or  

partnership. 
(j) “Regulation,” shall include any regulation duly adopted by the Russell County Board of  

Supervisors of Russell County Recreation and Park Commission pursuant to the powers contained in 
Virginia Code Section 15.1-1232(q). 

 
2.  Construction of Ordinance.   Provisions of these regulations shall be construed as follows: 

(a) No provision of this ordinance shall make unlawful any act necessarily performed by any law 
enforcement officer, employee of the County, or agent of the County in the necessary and proper 
execution of their duties; 
(b) Any act prohibited by these regulations, provided it is not otherwise prohibited by law or local 
ordinance, shall be lawful if performed under, by virtue of and strictly within the provision of a 
permit and to the extent authorized; and  
(c) These regulations are in addition to and supplement the Virginia Game, Inland Fish and Boat 
Laws and those regulations that are incorporated and made a part thereof; 
 

 
3.  Jurisdiction.  These regulations shall be effective within and upon all parks and facilities in Russell 
County that are under the jurisdiction of the County and the Commission. 
 

PROHIBITED CONDUCT 
 
4.  Flowers, Plants, Minerals, etc.  No person shall remove, destroy, or damage in any manner any tree, 
flower, fern, shrub, rock or plant, historical artifact, or mineral in any park.  Nor shall any person attach any 
rope, wire or other contrivance to any tree or plant.  A person shall not dig in or otherwise disturb grassy 
areas or otherwise impair the natural beauty or usefulness of any park. 
 
5.  Buildings, Signs, Structures, etc.  No person shall in any manner deface, destroy or tamper with any part 
of any park or facility, nor any building, sign, equipment, bridges, tables, benches, fireplaces, railings, 
paving or paving material, water lines or other public utilities or parts or appurtenances thereof, signs, 
notices, boundary markers, or other structures or equipment, County facilities or park property or 
appurtenances whatsoever, either real or personal. 
 
6.   Disposal of Refuse, Garbage, etc.   No person shall discharge, deposit in any part of any park or facility 
or body of water in or adjacent to any park any garbage, sewage, waste, or any other offensive material, 
except in proper trash receptacles where provided. 
 
7.  Pollution of Waters.  No person shall bathe dogs or other animals, wash vehicles or clothing in the 
streams, or other waters of any park, or throw, discharge or otherwise cause to be placed into streams, or 
other waters of the park or in any storm sewer or drain flowing into said waters, any substance, matter or 
thing, liquid or solid, which may or shall result in the pollution of said waters. 
 
8.  Disorderly Conduct.  No person shall disobey a lawful order of a park supervisor or other duly authorized 
officer or agent of the County or Commission.  No person may commit a nuisance, nor use abusive, profane, 
or insulting language, nor unreasonably disturb or annoy others, nor do any act tending to or amounting to 
a breach of the peace in any park or facility. 
 
9.  Gambling.   Gambling in any park is prohibited. 
 

DRAFT 



 3 

10.  Prohibited Substances.  No person shall have in their possession any tobacco products, alcoholic 
beverages, or any other illegal substances or be under the influence of intoxicants while in the confines of 
any park or facility.  Anyone found in violation will be removed from the park or facility and are subject to 
arrest. 
 
11.  Bathing.   No person shall swim in any waters in any park. 
 
12. Firearms.  No person shall possess a slingshot, bow and arrow, dart device, or other device designated 
for high-speed missile projection in a park or facility.  Provided, no person except law enforcement officers 
or those persons in possession of a concealed weapons permit valid in the Commonwealth of Virginia may 
carry or possess firearms in a park or facility.  No person shall discharge a firearm within the confines of a 
park or facility unless in an act of self-defense or unless otherwise authorized as a law enforcement officer. 
  
13.  Explosives.  No person shall bring into or possess in any park or facility any explosive or explosive 
substance. 
 
14.  Fires, Lighted Cigarettes, etc.  No person shall kindle, maintain, or use fire other than in places provided 
or designated for such purposes or otherwise by special permit.  Any fire shall be continuously under the 
care and direction of a competent person over sixteen years of age from the time it is kindled until it is 
extinguished. No person within the confine of any park shall throw away or discard any lighted match, 
cigarette, cigar, or other burning object.  Any lighted match, cigarette, cigar, or other burning object must 
be entirely extinguished before being properly disposed of. 
 
15.  Smoking.  No person shall smoke in any park or facility where smoking is prohibited as indicated by 
sign.  No smoking is allowed when walking nature trails.  Smoking may be forbidden by the County or 
Commission in any part of any park or facility when it is deemed that the fire hazard makes such action 
advisable. 
 
16.  Hunting.  No person shall hunt, pursue, trap, shoot, injure, kill, or molest in any way any bird or 
animal within the confines of a park, nor shall any person possess any wild bird or animal within a park.   
Shooting into a park from beyond park boundaries is prohibited. 
 
17.  Fishing.  Fishing is permitted in designated areas of parks.  All persons fishing must have a State 
Fishing License as required by law and comply with all applicable state laws and regulations.  No 
commercial fishing is allowed. 
 
18.  Animals at Large.  No person shall cause or permit any animal owned by him, in his custody or under 
his control, except an animal restrained by a leash not exceeding six feet in length, to enter any park, and 
any such animal may be seized and disposed of as provided by law. 
 
19.  Model Rockets and Airplanes.  No person shall engage in the flying of powered model rockets or 
airplanes in any park. 
 
20.  Aviation.  No person shall voluntarily bring, land or cause to descend or alight within or upon any 
park, any airplane, flying machine, balloon, parachute, or other apparatus for aviation except under permit 
or by forced landing in the event of an emergency.     
 
 
 
 
 

DRAFT 



 4 

TRAFFIC AND PARKING 
 

21.  Vehicles Use.  No person shall drive a motor vehicle in any park or at any facility within or upon a 
safety zone, walk, bicycle path, nature trail, fire truck trail, service road or any park not designated for, or 
customarily used by motor vehicles, except properly authorized individuals engaged in fire control, park 
maintenance or other necessary park-related activities. 
 
22.  Parking.   

(a)  No owner or driver shall cause or permit a vehicle to stand anywhere in any park or at any 
facility outside of designated parking spaces, except at reasonable times to receive or discharge 
passengers.  Parking shall be in accordance with the posted directions to the parking area and/or 
with the instruction of any attendant who may be present. 
(b)  No owner or driver shall cause or permit a vehicle to stand in any space designated for use by 
the handicapped in any park or at any facility unless the vehicle displays a license plate or decal 
issued by The Commissioner of Motor Vehicles of Virginia, or a similar identification issued by 
similar authority in some other state or District of Columbia. 

 
23.  Obstructing Traffic.  No person shall cause or permit a vehicle to obstruct traffic in a park. 
 
24.  Speed Limit.  The speed limit on any park road is no more than fifteen miles per hour. 
 
25.  Excessive Loads.  No person shall operate any excessively loaded vehicle anywhere in any park.  The 
determination of whether a load is excessive will be made by a park official based upon the load and the 
condition of the road. 
 

HOURS OF ACCESS 
 

26.  Old Russell County Courthouse.  No person is permitted on the premises of the Old Russell County 
Courthouse from sunset until dawn of the following day unless by special permit issued by the County or 
Commission. 
 
27.  All Other Parks.  Normal operating hours of parks are from dawn until 10:00 pm.  All events should 
be concluded by this time unless arrangements are made in advance with the Commission.  No person is 
permitted in the confines of any park or facility after normal operating hours unless as otherwise authorized 
by the County or Commission. 
 
28.  Closed Areas. No person shall enter or use an area posted in a park or facility as “Closed to the 
Public” unless otherwise authorized by the County or Commission. 
 

GROUP USAGE 
 
29.  Provisions for Use of Any Park or Facility by Groups of Five or More.  The following provisions apply 
to use of any County Park or facility by groups of five or more: 

 
(a)   Any individual or organization sponsoring an event must provide sufficient adult supervision 
to maintain order and safety of all participants, be responsible for any loss or damage to the property 
and provide sufficient liability insurance coverage as required by the Commonwealth of Virginia.  
The Commission shall be a named insured on such liability insurance coverage. 
 
(b)  An individual must be designated as a user group’s representative and will accept all liability 
for personal injuries or damage resulting from the use of the facility or park. 

DRAFT 



5 

30. Provisions Applying Exclusively to Use of Parks by Groups of Five or More.   The following provisions
apply to the use of any County Park by groups of five or more:

(a) A Facility Use Application must be submitted for approval to the County at least ten days before
the event.

(b) A damage deposit of $200.00 or a suitable surety must be provided to the County prior to the
event; said deposit or surety to be returned or released by the County within ten days of the event,
offset by the cost of any damages caused by the respective group’s use of the park.

(c) No damage deposit shall be required for use of a park by any community welfare, charitable,
educational, or faith-based group or any group with an agreement with the Commission or County
for such group to provide maintenance and upkeep of such park.

31. Facilities Other than Parks.  No fee or damage deposit shall be required for use of any facility other
than parks.

ENFORCEMENT AND PENALTIES 

32. Enforcement.  The Commission and park attendants shall, in connection with their duties imposed by
law, diligently enforce the provisions of this Ordinance.  The Commission and any park attendant shall
have the authority to eject from a park or facility any person acting in violation of this Ordinance.

33. Penalties.  It shall be unlawful and constitute a misdemeanor for any person to violate any of the
provisions of the Russell County Park Commission Rules, as promulgated under the authority of Virginia
Code Section 15.1-1232(q).  Each day any person who continues to act in violation of any of the rules
shall constitute a separate offense.  Every person convicted of a misdemeanor for violation of any of the
rules shall be punished by a fine of not less than ten dollars nor more than five hundred dollars and the
trial of all violations of this ordinance shall be enforced by proceedings before the Judge of the Russell
County District Court, in the manner and with like rights of appeal as is provided in misdemeanor cases;
and the Sheriff and all deputies, Virginia Game Warden, and all police officers of Russell county are
hereby authorized to issue summons in writing to the violators of this ordinance to appear before said
Court.  All fines collected from any person for violating any portion of this ordinance, upon conviction
thereof, shall be credited to the general revenue funds of the County of Russell and deposited by the
Treasurer or Russell County in the same manner as provided for other monies.

34. Savings Provision.  If any section, phrase, or part of this ordinance should for any reason be held
invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the remainder of this ordinance;
and every remaining section, phrase or part thereof shall continue in full force and effect.

This ordinance shall become effective _____________________, 2015. 

Adopted this _____ day of ______________, 2015. 

______________________________________ 
JON BOWERBANK, CHAIRMAN 
Russell County Board of Supervisors 

Attest: ______________________ 
           Clerk 

DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



HORTONS FENCING

Phone:

Street Address E-mail:

City, ST  ZIP Code

STATEMENT

Statement #:
Bill To:

Name

Date: Company Name

Customer ID: Street Address

City, ST  ZIP Code

DATE TYPE INVOICE # DESCRIPTION AMOUNT PAYMENT BALANCE

3/20/2024

6' wire 9 ga $4,396.00 $4,396.00

  2 3/8 8' post $1,586.20 $1,586.20

2 7/8 8'post $441.40 $441.40

25 2 7/8 tension bands $113.75 $113.75

30 2 7/8 brace bands $45.00 $45.00

1 roll of tension wire $86.47 $86.47

1 box of nuts and bolts $46.00 $46.00

400 8 1/4 ties $48.00 $48.00

10 2 7/8 caps $45.00 $45.00

100 ft 7'9 ga wire $733.00 $733.00

55 2 3/8 std eyetop $140.25 $140.25

3lb 9 ga hog ring $9.36 $9.36

50 ft 10' ga wire $550.00 $550.00

65 bags quikrete $443.30 $443.30

10 roll ends $171.00 $171.00

20
3/16x5/8x70 tension 

bar $84.20 $84.20

5
3/16x3/4x82 tension 

bar $36.85 $36.85

7 10' tension bar $70.00 $70.00

30 1 5/8 x21 rails $1,152.90 $1,152.90

TOTAL $10,198.68

276-202-9656

Baseball                                     
Honaker Little League

Honaker Little League

P.O. Box 382

10585 River Mountain Road

Lebanon,VA 24266

3/20/2024

h_hfencing@yahoo.com

Honaker,Va 24260

Reminder: Please include the statement number on your check.

DRAFT 

about:blank
about:blank


DATE TYPE INVOICE # DESCRIPTION AMOUNT PAYMENT BALANCE

REMITTANCE

Customer Name: Honaker Little League

Customer ID:

Statement #:

Date:

Amount Due: $10,198.68

Amount Enclosed:

Terms: Balance due upon receiving.

Page 2 of 2

DRAFT 



HORTONS FENCING

Phone:

Street Address E-mail:

City, ST  ZIP Code

STATEMENT

Statement #:
Bill To:

Name

Date: Company Name

Customer ID: Street Address

City, ST  ZIP Code

DATE TYPE INVOICE # DESCRIPTION AMOUNT PAYMENT BALANCE

3/20/2024 300ft  wire 9g $1,884.00 $1,884.00

10 8'2 7/8 post $441.40 $441.40

18 8'2 3/8 post $519.12 $519.12

315 ft 1 5/8 x 21 top rail $576.45 $576.45

80 t bands $72.80 $72.80

55 b bands $57.75 $57.75

1 roll of tension wire $86.47 $86.47

10 rail ends $17.10 $17.10

400 bag of 8 1/4 ties $48.00 $48.00

10 caps $45.00 $45.00

10 t bars $42.10 $42.10

1 box of nuts and bolts $46.00 $46.00

100 ft 8'9 ga wire $860.00 $860.00

30 bags quikrete $204.60 $204.60

TOTAL $4,900.79

REMITTANCE

Customer Name: Honaker Little League 

Customer ID:

Statement #:

Terms: Balance due upon receiving.

276-202-9656

Softball                            Honaker 
Little League

Honaker Little League

P O Box 382

10585 River Mountain Road

Lebanon,VA 24266

3/20/2024

h_hfencing@yahoo.com

Honaker,Va 24266

Reminder: Please include the statement number on your check.

DRAFT 

about:blank
about:blank


DATE TYPE INVOICE # DESCRIPTION AMOUNT PAYMENT BALANCE

Date:

Amount Due: $4,900.79

Amount Enclosed:

Page 2 of 2

DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 


	Presentations.pdf
	Meeting: 4/8/24      6:00 PM
	Staff Recommendation:
	Suggested Motion:

	Grievance Procedure Tiller Trailer Park.pdf
	County of Russell, Virginia
	Section 504 Grievance Procedure

	Tiller Trailer Park Admin Agreement.pdf
	WITNESSETH

	Tiller Trailer Park Request for Prior Authorization.pdf
	cc: Kathi Boatright, DHCD Community Development Specialist

	Authorization - Minutes BOS.pdf
	SUGGESTED MOTION(s):

	Authorization - Expenditures.pdf
	SUGGESTED MOTION(s):

	Reports1.pdf
	Meeting: 4/8/24         6:00 PM

	Honaker Little League Fence Repairs Baseball.pdf
	BILLING STATEMENT

	Honaker Little League Fence Repairs Softball.pdf
	BILLING STATEMENT




